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11,799 11,920 11,293 12,144 13,232
1,711,799 1,729,354 1,638,388 1,761,852 1,919,699
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19,401,258 19,591,748 19,962,283 21,672,195 22,530,054
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24,727 28,701 26,177 26,927 27,340
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1,331 1,466 1,355 10% )%
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TFS

TFS TMCC TFS
12
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oOoOooodn
TFS
TMCC
2025 31
2024 31 2025 31

$17,462 $17,222 5.59% $17,494 $17,283 4.56%
MTN 53,146 52,981 4.06% 54,371 54,210 4.17%
EMTN 13,637 13,550 2.54% 15,449 15,354 3.05%
4,331 4,330 5.44% 3,182 3,181 4.95%
88,576 88,083 4.19% 90,496 90,028 4.08%
34,387 34,337 4.64% 37,765 37,717 4.53%
$122,963 $122,420 4.32% $128,261 $127,745 4.21%
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17.2

MIN

SEC
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oOoOooodn

MTN EMTN )

(@)
$17,462 $53,146 $13,637 $4,331 $88,576
32 20,675 3,584 1,200 25,491
- (19,450) 1,777) (2,349) (23,576)
- - 5 - 5
$17,494 $54,371 $15,449 $3,182 $90,496
$3,420 $- $- $60 $3,480

2025
18.0 17.6
SEC

2027
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EMTN
TNCC
EMTN EMTN
EMTN 2024 EMTN
EMTN 60.0
EMTN EMTN
EMTN
EMTN
TNCC
2024 31 $34,387
22,473
(19,095)
2025 31 $37,765

2025 30 $3,260
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50

2027 12
SEC

2024 31 2025 31
SEC
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364
T™MCC TCPR
5.0 364 5.0
5.0 2026
31 2026 2028 31
2028 2030 31 2030
2024 31 2025 31
2026
364
8.5
2024 31 2025 31 3.4
5.8
T™MCC 2025 31 TMCC
4.1 2.2 2026 1.9
2028
2024 31 2025 31
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2024
TFS
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TFS

2028 5.0

31 2025 31
TMCC
TFS
100
10
2025 31

( )TFS

()
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1
2
TFS TMCC
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TMCC
TMCC
TMCC

TFS

30

TFS TFS
TFS

TFS

100
100,000

TMCC
TMCC

TMCC TFS

TMCC TMCC

TMCC

TFS

TFS
TMCC
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TFS
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US GAAP
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10 2025 31
154
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100
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12

100
2024 31 2025 31 100bp
100bp 100bp
2024 31 $12.7 $(11.8)
2025 31 $18.6 $(17.6)

94/314

2024 31 2025 31



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

2025 31

1SDA

1SDA

2025 31

1SDA

95/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

2024 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$783 $697 $- $697 $- $- $-
13 12 - 2 1 4 5
8 7 1 6 - - -
477 430 - 3 120 250 57
199 184 32 127 14 2 9
142 138 46 32 27 25 8
$1,622 $1,468 $79 $867 $162 $281 $79
$1,964 $267 $455 $1,233 $9 $-
$3,432 $346 $1,322 $1,395 $290 $79

2025 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$824 $743 $- $743 $- $- $-
21 20 - 3 5 2 10
8 8 1 6 1 - -
15 15 - - 15 - -
488 450 - 3 130 255 62
208 197 30 147 14 - 6
136 134 30 37 27 24 16
$1,700 $1,567 $61 $939 $192 $281 $94
$1,867 $378 $467 $1,013 $- $9
$3,434 $439 $1,406 $1,205 $281 $103

VaR
30 99
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VaR
2024 31 2025 31
$124 $71
$69 $45
$163 $87
TFS
TMCC 12
TMCC 60,000,000,000
TMCC
2024 13

(The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London branch)
EC4V 4LA 160
(160 Queen Victoria Street, London EC4V 4LA, United Kingdom)
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TMcC 60,000,000,000

TMCC

2024 13

(The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Dublin Branch)

2
(Grand Canal Dock, Dublin 2, Ireland)

(Riverside Two, Sir John Rogerson®s Quay)

T™MCC
TMCC  TCPR 2025
2024 11
2026 2028
364 5.0

T™MCC
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100,000 91,500 8,500
91,500
50,000,000 915,000,000
1996 5,000 91,500 72 5,400 1,327 4,820
"
75024-5965
2.5
91,500 100
6565
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2018 31
2022
TMcC TFSIC
2020
TFSIC
2024
1.5

TMCC

700
TFSIC

T™MCC
2020

TMCC

31

10

2023
979

T™CC

T™MCC
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TMCC

)
1970 10 2003 TMCC 2017 12 2019
TMCC
2019 2019 TMCC
2019 TFSIC
2017 12 2022 TMCC
2019 2024
TMCC 2022 2024
TMCC
2019 TMCC 2024 TMCC
2025
TMCC
1961 1990 ™S 2016 TFS
2017 TFS
2016 TFSIC
2020 TMNA
2021 10 TFSB
2018 2024 TMCC
2016 2025 TMCC
2025 TMNA
1961 12 28
1986 2021
2021 T™MCC
2021
TFS
TFSIC
1959 10 29 1984 2017 2020
TMNA 2018
2019 2019
2019
2019 2020
2019 2020
12 2020
2023
2020 ™CC TMNA
2023
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TMCC
43
)
1970 10
1966
1967
1964 12 28 1999 ™S 2019
2019 11 TMCC
2019
2020 TMCC
2019 2020 TESIC
2019 11
2020 TMNA
2020
2022 TMCC
2022 2022 10 T™MCC
2020
TFSIC 2021 10
TFSB 2022
10 TMCC
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1986 26 2012 TMCC 2019
2021
2021 2022
2022
2023
2023
1977 17 TMCC 2006
2021
2021 2022
M&A
2022
2024 M&A
2024
1969 11 30 1993 T™S 2017
2019 TMCC
2019
2024
2024 2025
2025

TMCC

106/314



1A
IT
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1A 1A

11

21

1A

TMCC

TMCC
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1A
1A 1A
PCAOB 1A
PCAOB
31
2024 2025

$14,333 $12,867

287 320

48 49

$14,668 $13,236

10-K
10-Q
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SEC
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2025 31
TMCC
TMCC TMCC
2024 2025
TMCC 2025 2025

6,801,932
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2015
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60
™S
T™MS
65
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TMNA
2015
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T™S 2015
2015
™S
TMCC  TCPR
120
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T™S

TMNA

T™S

TMNA
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a
b TMNA
59.5 TMNA
60
2015 T™S
2015
™S T™MS T™MS
T™MS
TMNA ERSP
TMNA TMNA
TMNA

ERSP
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SERP TMCC
SERP SERP

SERP a SERP

b SERP
c TMS
100
T™MS TMNA
T™MS
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™S TMS DCP SERP
TMNA TMCC
TMS DCP 2017
T™MCC
TMS DCP 2016
TMNA TMNA DCP TMNA DCP
TMNA DCP TMNA
100
TMNA
50 TMNA
™S
™S SERP 22
TMNA DCP DCP
TMNA DCP
TMNA DCP
DCP DCP

TMNA DCP TMNA DCP
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PULTIP

PULTIP

TMCC

TIRP

TMNA DCP

TIRP

TMCC

T™S
TMCC
2016
2016
2020 10
TIRP
TIRP
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PULTIP
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2024

2025

38 59

23 103
193

331
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OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

2025 31 2025 31

TMCC 1934
SEC 10-K

328

SEC

2025 17
145.08
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oOoOooodn
31
2023 2024 2025

7,063 1,024,700 ($ 6,270 909,652 |$ 6,274 910,232
3,737 542,164 4,965 720,322 5,909 857,278
493 71,524 909 131,878 1,049 152,189
11,293 1,638,388 12,144 1,761,852 13,232 1,919,699
5,122 743,100 4,179 606,289 4,134 599,761
3,054 443,074 4,705 682,601 5,825 845,091
3,117 452,214 3,260 472,961 3,273 474,847
1,053 152,769 1,120 162,490 1,210 175,547
97 14,073 873 126,655 984 142,759
4,267 619,056 5,253 762,105 5,467 793,152
713 103,442 839 121,722 768 111,421
1,776 257,662 1,920 278,554 1,827 265,061
470 68,188 592 85,887 638 92,561
2,959 429,292 3,351 486,163 3,233 469,044
1,308 189,765 1,902 275,942 2,234 324,109
329 47,731 442 64,125 522 75,732
979 142,033 |$ 1,460 211,817 |$ 1,712 248,377
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31
2023 2024 2025
9079 | 142,033 | $ 1,460 | 211,817 |$ 1,712 | 248,377
2023 10 1,451
@n| (5.368) M| @, o6) 7 1,016
2024 290
2025 (
(290)
2023 1 145 6N (145) 2 290
2024
2025 145
@6 (5,223) ®| «,16D) 9 1,306
943 | 136,810 | $ 1,452 | 210,656 | $ 1,721 | 249,683
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2024 31 2025 31
$ 8,570 1,243,336 | $ 10,769 1,562,367
2,251 326,575 2,490 361,249
4,505 653,585 4,581 664,611
2024 31 1,637
237,496 101,669 14,750,139 101,749 14,761,745
2025 31 1,644
238,512
28,013 4,064,126 30,090 4,365,457
4,373 634,435 5,615 814,624
$ 149,381 21,672,195 [ $ 155,294 22,530,054
$ 122,420 17,760,694 | $ 127,745 18,533,245
3,272 474,702 2,973 431,323
6,707 973,052 7,333 1,063,872
132,399 19,208,447 138,051 20,028,439
2024 2025 31
100,000 915 132,748 915 132,748
91,500
2 290 2 290
(65) (9,430) (56) (8,124)
16,130 2,340,140 16,382 2,376,701
16,982 2,463,749 17,243 2,501,614
$ 149,381 21,672,195 [ $ 155,294 22,530,054
2024 31 2025 31
$ 31,130 4,516,340 | $ 33,958 4,926,627
10,274 1,490,552 10,722 1,555,548
142 20,601 167 24,228
$ 41,546 6,027,494 | $ 44,847 6,506,403
$ 34,337 4,981,612 | $ 37,717 5,471,982
66 9,575 72 10,446
$ 34,403 4,991,187 | $ 37,789 5,482,428
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2022 31 $ 915 | $ 2| s enls 17,205 [ $ 18,101
— — — 979 979
— — (36) — (36)
_ — — (2,535) (2,535)
2023 31 $ 915 | $ 2| s G| 15,649 | $ 16,509
— — — 1,460 1,460
— — ® — ®
— — — (979) (979)
2024 31 $ 915 | $ 2| s 65)| $ 16,130 [ $ 16,982
— — — 1,712 1,712
— — 9 — 9
_ — — (1,460) (1,460)
2025 31 $ 915 | $ 2| s 56)| $ 16,382 [ $ 17,243
2022 31 132,748 290 (3,047)| 2,496,101 2,626,093
— — — 142,033 142,033
— — (5,223) — (5,223)
— — — (367,778) (367,778)
2023 31 132,748 290 (8,270)| 2,270,357 2,395,126
— — — 211,817 211,817
— — (1,161) — (1,161)
_ — — (142,033) (142,033)
2024 31 132,748 290 (9,430)| 2,340,140 2,463,749
_ — — 248,377 248,377
— — 1,306 — 1,306
— — — (211,817) (211,817)
2025 31 132,748 290 (8,124)| 2,376,701 2,501,614
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31
2023 2024 2025
979 142,033 |[$ 1,460 211,817 |$ 1,712 248,377
5,205 755,141 4,301 623,989 4,221 612,383
(1,797)|  (260,709)|  (1,507)| (218,636)|  (1.604)|  (232,708)
713 103,442 839 121,722 768 111,421
1,029 149,287 1,030 149,432 1,044 151,464
206 29,886 180 26,114 4 5,948
375 54,405 (145) (21,037) (90) (13,057)
10 1,451 10 1,451 ) (725)
(1,040)|  (150,883) 91 13,202 42 6,093
2,173 315,259 (453) (65,721) (302) (43,814)
©)) (1,161) 6 870 4 580
(505)|  (73,265) 1,003 145,515 472 68,478
7,340 | 1,064,887 6,815 988,720 6,303 914,439
(2,467)|  (357,912) 727)|  (105,473) (681) (98,799)
1,902 275,942 1,282 185,993 593 86,032
59 8,560 113 16,394 122 17,700
(49,105)| (7,124,153)|  (54,549)| (7,913,969)| (52,117)| (7.561,134)
41,309 | 5,993,110 44,692 | 6,483,915 51,241 | 7,434,044
(930)| (134,924)|  (2.442)|  (354,285) 267 38,736
(9.617)| (1.,395,234)| (13,755)| (1,995,575)| (17.870)| (2.,592,580)
11,001 | 1,596,025 11,888 | 1,724,711 11,730 | 1,701,788
(760)| (110,261)|  (1,145)|  (166,117)|  (1.536)| (222,843)
340 49,327 669 97,059 545 79,069
(36) (5,223) (5) (725) 67 9,720
(83)|  (12,042) ) (10,736) (52) (7,544)
(8.387)| (1,216,786)| (14,053)| (2,038,809)(  (7.691)| (1,115,810)
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31
2023 2024 2025

38,797 | 5,628,669 43,413 | 6,298,358 47,799 | 6,934,679

(35,374)| (5,132,060)|  (33.498)| (4.859,890)|  (42,573)| (6.176,491)

(1,088)| (157,847) 635 92,126 53 7,689

— — — — 7 1,016

(2,535)  (367,778) ©79)| (@42,033) @,460)| (11,817)

(200) (29,016) 9,571 | 1,388,561 3,826 555,076

@1,247)|  (180,915) 2,333 338,472 2,438 353,705

9,735 | 1,412,354 8,488 | 1,231,439 10,821 | 1,569,911

$ 8,488 | 1,231,439 |$ 10,821 | 1,569,911 [$ 13,259 | 1,923,616

$ 2,375 344,565 [$ 4,010 581,771 |$ 5,073 735,991

$  (462) (67,027)|$ 57 8,270 |$ 540 78,343
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TMCC
TFS 100
TFSIC 100
TFS ™C 100 TFS
T™C T™MCC
T™CC
MFS
100
T™MIS

™IS
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20

US GAAP

TFSIC

T™MCC
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VIE

2025

TFSB
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2025 31
14
2025 31 23

2025 TFSIC
TMCC MFS

TMCC

TFSB MFS MFS
TFSB TFSB
MFS

T™MCC TFSB  MFS
T™MCC MFS

US GAAP

12
100
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2023 ASU  2022-02 326

ASU ASU  2016-13

326
ASU
2025 31 ASU  2023-07 280
ASU
14

2023 12 FASB ASU  2023-09 740 ASU

ASU 2026 31
2024 11 FASB ASU  2024-03 220-

40 ASU
2025 FASB ASU  2024-03 ASU  2025-01

ASU 2028 31
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829
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778

31

2025
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2024 31
$ 783 $ 1 $ @n s 697
13 — @ 12
8 — @ 7
477 2 (49) 430
123 — ) 118
12 — @ 11
64 — ©) 55
142 1 ) 138
$ 1,622 $ 4 $ (158) $ 1,468
3,037
$ 4,505
2025 31
$ 824 $ 2 $ @3) 3 743
21 — @ 20
8 1 @ 8
15 — — 15
488 2 (40) 450
146 — 5) 141
12 — @ 11
50 — 5) 45
136 1 ®) 134
$ 1,700 $ 6 $ (139) 3 1,567
3,014
$ 4,581

250
90
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2024 31

12 12

317 % (13 $ 33 $ (74 $ 63 $ (87

1 — 8 () 9 (€Y
— — 2 (€)) 2 (€))
31 ®3) 339 (46) 370 (49)
51 [€)) 49 O 100 )

1 — 7 [€)) 8 ()

1 — 53 ) 54 ©)
17 — 58 ) 75 (%)

49 $ (17 $ 852 $ (141) $ 1,271 $ (158)

2025 31

12 12

104 8 (1 $ 53 $ (82) $ 638 $ (83)

7 _ 6 [€)) 13 )
— — 2 €Y 2 (€Y
42 () 288 39) 330 (40)
68 )] 37 (O 105 )

1 — 7 [€)) 8 (@H)

3 — 41 ) 44 )
37 — 41 [©)) 78 [€))

262 $ 3 $ 96 $ (136) $ 1,218 $ (139)

2025 2024 31
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31
2023 2024 2025
$ an s 13) $ 9
$ 38 $ ) $ ()
$ @I $ 296 $ 142
$ 23 $ 137) $ (56)
2025 31

$ 103 $ 103
365 354

436 421

452 358

344 331

$ 1,700 $ 1,567
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2025 2024 31
120
2024 31 2025 31

$ 87,150 $ 87,418

16,181 16,521

103,331 103,939

1,399 1,227

(1,424) (1,773)

(1,549) (1,544)

(88) (100)

(1,637) (1,644)

$ 101,669 $ 101,749

2024 2025 31 31.5 34.4

2025 2024 31

383 396
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2024 31
2019
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2 $ 35,407 $22,473 $15,041 $ 8,530 $2,654 $ 748 $ 84,862
30 59 301 488 426 242 92 53 1,602
60 89 77 143 119 68 27 17 451
90
38 69 53 29 10 11 210
$ 35823 § 23,173 $ 15639 $ 8,878  $2,783 $ 829 $87.125
$ 38 $ 207 $ 258 $ 111 $ 38 $ 34 $ 776
2025 31
2020
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
% $32,009 $24,235 $14,395 $ 9,005 $4,004 $ 941 $ 84,809
30 59 108 377 384 295 147 57 1,458
60 89 57 110 112 80 41 18 418
90
24 48 50 35 18 12 187
$ 32,328 $ 24,770 $ 14,941 $ 9,505  $ 4,300  $ 1,028 $ 86,872
$ 31 $ 254 $ 304 $ 18 $ 72 $ 38 $ 887
2025 2024 31 313
318 120
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2024 31
2019

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $6207 $ 6287
— — — — — — 238 238
— — — — — — 112 112
— — — — — — 36 36

$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 6,673 $ 6,673

$ 1,224 $ 883 $ 85 $ 80 $ 128 $ 784 $ 3 $ 4,697
58 37 44 6 — — — 145
8 1 10 — — 2 — 21
4 2 — 25 — — — 31

$ 1,294 $ 923 $ 869 $ 891 $ 128 $ 786 $ 3 $ 4,894

$ 769 $ 414 $ 235 $ 122 $ 105 $ 159 $ 2,715 $ 4,519

20 41 13 — — — 2 76
— 3 — — 2 — 1 6
— — — 13 — — — 13

789 $ 458 $ 248 $ 135 $ 107 $ 159 $ 2,718 $ 4,614

2,083 $ 1,381 $ 1,117 $ 1,026 $ 235 $ 945 $ 9,39% $ 16,181
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2024 31 12
2025 31
2020

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 6,042 $ 6,042
— — — — — — 408 408
— — - — — — 40 40
— — — — — — 8 8
$ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 6,498 $ 6,498
$ 1,755 $ 691 $ 485 $ 568 $ 773 $ 5% $ 92 $ 4,960
55 89 8 22 2 32 — 208
— 10 — 2 — — — 12
4 — — — — — — 4
$ 1,814 $ 790 $ 493 $ 592 $ 775 $ 628 $ 92 $ 5,184
$ 775 $ 420 $ 204 $ 152 $ 105 $ 181 $ 2,789 $ 4,62
50 49 14 3 — 1 92 209
— — — — — — 4 4
825 $ 469 $ 218 $ 155 $ 105 $ 182 $ 2,885 $ 4,839
2,639 $ 1,259 $ 711 $ 747 $ 80 $ 810 $ 9,475 $ 16,521

2025 31 12
2025 2024 31 70
78 2025 2024 31
120

30
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2024 31
90
30 59 60 89 90
29

$ 1,602 $ 451 $ 210 $ 2,263 $ 84,862 $ 87,125 $ 142
— — — — 6,673 6,673 —
— — — — 4,894 4,894 —
_ _ — — 4,614 4,614 —

$ 1,602 $ 451 $ 210 $ 2,263 $101,043 $103,306 $ 142

2025 31
90
30 59 60 89 90
29

$ 1,458 $ 418 $ 187 $ 2,063 $ 84,809 $ 86,872 $ 110
_ _ — — 6,498 6,498 —
— — — — 5,184 5,184 —
_ _ — — 4,839 4,839 —

$ 1,458 $ 418 $ 187 $ 2,063 $101,330 $103,393 $ 110

2025 2024 2025 2024 31
2025 2024 31 12 12

133/314
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TMCC

120
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FICO

FICO

135/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

120
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2023

2024

2024

2025

2025

2025

31

31

TMNA

31

31

TMNA
249
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2024 31
$ 1,430 $ 83 $ 1,513
(776) — (776)
108 — 108
787 52 839
$ 1,549 $ 135 $ 1,684
a7
2025 31
$ 1,549 $ 135 $ 1,684
(887) — (887)
139 — 139
743 25 768
$ 1,544 $ 160 $ 1,704
60
2024 31
120
1.3
2024 31
TMNA 1.3

231

137/314
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505

250
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2025 2024 31
2024 31 2025 31
$ 35,383 $ 36,523
(609) (955)
(6,761) (5.,478)
$ 28,013 $ 30,090
( ) 2024 2025 31 13.8 13.6
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2026
2027
2028
2029
2030

31

2025

31
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$ 5,330
3,707

1,324

66

$ 10,430
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orc
oTC

2025 31

0TC
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2024
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2024 31 2025 31
$ 71,830 $ 1,149 41,880 $ 363
1,759 89 3,497 132
$ 73,589 $ 1,238 45,377 $ 495
(346) (207)
(851) (242)
$ 41 $ 46
$ 38,920 $ 52 64,440 $ 31
7,433 918 7,026 717
$ 46,353 $ 970 71,466 $ 748
(346) (207)
(601) (514)
$ 23 $ 27
31
2025 2024 31 288 311
31
2023 2024 2025
$ 2,919 $ 4,936 $ 5,667
(569) (661) 34
2,350 4,275 5,701
(614) (80) (96)
805 (90) (108)
513 600 328
$ 3,054 $ 4,705 $ 5,825
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2028
2029
2030

31
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2024 31 2025 31
$ 88,576 $ 88,083 4.19 $ 90,496 $ 90,028 4.08
34,387 34,337 4.64 37,765 37,717 4.53

$ 122,963  $ 122,420 4.32 $ 128,261  $ 127,745 4.21
$ 57,794

27,839

16,839

6,447

8,952

10,390

(516)

$ 127,745

2049
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2025 2024 31 17.3
17.2
364
TMCC 100 TCPR
2026 2028 2030 31
5.0 364 5.0 5.0

2025 2024 31

144/314



3.4

TMCC

2026

4.1

2025

TMCC

2025

2025 2024

2028 31

2024 31

5.0
2024 31

364

31

145/314
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8.5

2.2

2025

oOoOooodn

2026 31

5.8

31 TMCC
1.9

2028 31



VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

146/314

VIE
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VIE
VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE



TMCC

VIE

TMCC
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VIE

2024 31

VIE VIE
$ 1,559 $ 31,130 $ 125 $ 27,351 $ 54

692 10,274 17 6,986 12

$ 2,251 $ 41,404 $ 142 $ 34,337 $ 66

2025 31

VIE VIE
$ 1,853 $ 33,958 $ 152 $ 30,448 $ 62

637 10,722 15 7,269 10
$ 2,490 $ 44,680 $ 167 $ 37,717 $ 72
VIE
VIE TMCC T™MCC
VIE 2025 2024 31 1.6
VIE
TMCC
VIE
VIE
VIE

147/314
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TMCC

TMCC

2025 2024 31 2025 2024
2023

2024 31 2025 31
$ 3,244 $ 3,643
106 228
3,350 3,871
100 100
$ 3,450 $ 3,971

TMCC
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12

2025 30 2024
26 2023 32
2032 TMNA
2025 2024 31 54 62

TMCC

ROU

2025 2024 31
ROU
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10

31

TMCC

31

2024

2025

TMCC

2031

31

2024

10

TMCC

31

TMCC

2032

2028

10
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20

100
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2029 50 2030
TMCC
mMcC
2025

2025
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10
TMNA
TMCC
TMCC
2015
2015
25 120
60
2025 2024 2023
T™MCC
30
66.67
100 25

2015
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2025 2024 2023 TMCC
TMNA
55 10
2025 2024 2023 TMCC
11
TMCC TFSIC
TMCC TMCC TMCC TFSIC
TMCC TMCC
TMNA  TFSIC TMCC TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TFSIC TMCC
31
2023 2024 2025
$  (1,859) $ 769 $ 706
(6 114 115
16 12 3
(1,844) 895 824
2,100 (376) (258)
78 (72) 41
©) 5) 3
2,173 (453) (302)

$ 329 $ 442 $ 522
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15

2023 2024
2023
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31
2023 2024 2025
21.0 21.0 21.0
4.2 3.4 3.6
1.3 0.5 0.4
(0.3) 1.2) 0.1
(0.6) (0.6) 0.9)
0.4) 0.1 (0.8)
25.2 23.2 23.4

2025
31

2024 2025

$ 3,493 $ 3,181

439 485

271 237

73 101

$ 4,276 $ 4,004

517 503

210 235

186 171

19 38

40 26

14 15

19 43

1,005 1,031

@ —

$ 1,004 $ 1,031

$ 3,272 $ 2,973

2024 2025 31

153/314
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2025

2025

2024

2025

2024

2025

2025

31

31

2024

2025

2024

15

2024
2025

20

31

2024

31
25

31
2024

2024
13

31

TMNA
11
31
TMCC

154/314
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31
2027

2017

329 320

26
TMCC
TFSIC TFSB



2025 2024

11

2023
2022

2022 12 31

2025 31

2023

12

2024

2025

31

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn

31
2023 2024 2025
22 $ 43 52
2 3 14
19 11 —
— — €Y)
— (3) —
— @ @
43 $ 52 63
63 52 43
2025
2025 2024
740
15
2024
2018 2025 IRS
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12
31
2023 2024 2025
$ 1,243 $ 985 $ 975
$ 106 $ (68) $ 22
$ 96 $ 103 $ 114
$ 156 $ 152 $ 181
$ 35 $ 62 $ 91
$ 107 $ 94 $ 108
2024 31 2025 31
$ — $ 15
$ 49 $ 73
$ (953) $ (1,170)
$ (80) $ (100)
$ (323) $ (500)
$ 1,724 $ 2,651
$ 86 $ 9%
$ 433 $ 486
$ 771 $ 831
$ 8 $ 15
TMCC  TMNA 2025 2024
31 TMNA 106 111
TMNA
2025 2024 31
TMNA
2025 2024 TFSIC 1.5

979
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TMCC TFS T™MCC
TMCC TFS T™MCC
TFS T™MCC
T™MCC
TFS
TCPR TMCC TFS
TMCC TFS
2025 2024 31
8.3 8.4 ™S 2028
31 5.0 2025
2024 31 10.1 10.2
2023 12 300 2025 31 2.0
2025 2024 31
TMCC
TMcC
TMCC
TMCC TFSB TMCC TFSB

60
2025 2024 31 TMCC
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TMCC
TMCC TMNA
TMCC
TMCC  TFSB
TMCC  TFSB
TMCC TFSB TFS
TMCC
TMCC TFSB TFSB
MFS
TMCC TCPR
TMCC  TMNA
2032

TFSB

TMCC

TMCC

TMCC

TMCC

T™MS

TMCC

TMNA

158/314

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

TMCC
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TMNA

TFSB

TMCC TMCC TFSB

TMCC

TFS

TFSB

TMNA

2026



13

TMCC

TMCC

TMNA

TMNA

TMNA

™IS

™IS
2024 10

10

TMCC

TMNA

TMNA
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TMNA
TMCC
TMCC
™IS TMNA
TMNA
2024 10
99
™IS 95
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2025 2024 31 120
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2024 31

693 $ 4 $ — $ — $ 697
— 12 — — 12
— 7 — — 7
_ 430 — — 430
— 118 — — 118
— 7 4 — 11
— 46 9 — 55
— 82 56 — 138
693 706 69 — 1,468
1,134
830 — — — 830
1,073 — — — 1,073
1,903 — — — 3,037
2,596 706 69 — 4,505
— 1,149 — — 1,149
— 89 — — 89

— — — (1,197) (1,197)
— 1,238 — (1,197) 41
2,596 1,944 69 (1,197) 4,546

— (52) — — (52)

— (918) — — (918)
— — — 947 947

— (970) — 947 (23)
2,596 $ 974 $ 69 $ (250) $ 4,523
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2025 31

$ 724 $ 19 $ — $ — $ 743
— 20 — — 20
— 8 — — 8
- 15 — — 15
— 450 — — 450
— 141 — — 141
- 9 2 — 11
— 44 1 — 45
— 65 69 — 134
724 771 72 — 1,567
1,096
771 — — — 771
1,147 — — — 1,147
1,918 — — — 3,014
2,642 771 72 — 4,581
— 363 — — 363
— 132 — — 132

— — — (449) (449)
— 495 — (449) 46
2,642 1,266 72 (449) 4,627

— (31) — — (31)

— 717 — — 717
— — — 721 721

— (748) — 721 @7
$ 2,642 $ 518 $ 72 $ 272 $ 4,600

2025 2024 31

2025 2024 31
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2025 31

2025 31
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2024 31
$ 85,886 $ — $ — $ 8,7 $ 86,575
6,690 — — 6,710 6,710
4,900 — — 4,890 4,890
4,531 — — 4,494 4,494
$ 88,083 $ — $ 86,133 § —  $ 86,133
34,337 — — 34,003 34,003

2025 31
$ 85,633 $ — $ — $ 87,910 $ 87,910
6,512 — — 6,538 6,538
5,160 — — 5,215 5,215
4,745 — — 4,727 4,727
$ 90,028 $ — $ 89,19 $ — $ 89,19
37,717 — 37,755 — 37,755

2025
TMCC

12
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14

™IS

2023 31
$ 11,293 $ — $ — $ 11,293
5,122 — — 5,122
3,054 — — 3,054

3,117 — — 3,117

— 1,053 — 1,053

314 @17 — 97

3,431 836 — 4,267

713 — — 713

1,331 445 1,776

— 470 — 470

2,044 915 — 2,959

1,387 (79) — 1,308

346 an — 329

$ 1,041 $ (62) $ — $ 979
$ 131,003 $ 6,638 $ (136) $ 137,595
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2024 31

$ 12,144 $ — $ — $ 12,144

4,179 — — 4,179

4,705 — — 4,705

3,260 — — 3,260

— 1,120 — 1,120

515 358 — 873

3,775 1,478 — 5,253

839 — — 839

1,466 454 — 1,920

— 592 — 592

2,305 1,046 — 3,351

1,470 432 — 1,902

344 98 — 442

$ 1,126 $ 334 $ — $ 1,460

$ 141,993 $ 7,466 $ (78) $ 149,381
2025 31

$ 13,232 $ — $ — $ 13,232

4,134 — — 4,134

5,825 — — 5,825

3,273 — — 3,273

— 1,210 — 1,210

651 333 — 984

3,924 1,543 — 5,467

768 — — 768

1,355 472 — 1,827

— 638 — 638

2,123 1,110 — 3,233

1,801 433 — 2,234

419 103 — 522

$ 1,382 $ 330 $ — $ 1,712

$ 147,141 $ 8,202 $ (49) $ 155,294
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120
2025 2024 31
86 84
2025 2024 31
2024 31 2023 31 3.1 2.9

2025 945

2024 869 2025 31

3.4
2026 997 2.4

2025 2024 31 ™IS
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
{Dollars i millions)

Finaneing revenues:
Operating lease
Retail
Dealer

Toaal finoncmg revenues
Deepreciation on operating leases
Tileres) expense

Mol Mnacing revenses

Voluntiry protection contral revenines and
insurange camed premiums

Investment aowd other income, sl

Met finamcing revenues and other revenugs

Expenses:

Provision for credit losscs

Crperating and admimisirative

Volunary prolecibon contract expenses and insurance losscs
Toaal expenses

Incame belore oone axes
Provision for ingome [xes

Met income

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

Yeors ended March 31,

COMSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{Dollars m mulhons)

Met income

Other comprehensive income, nel of lax

Met nnrealized gains (losses) an availoble-for-sale
diebt securitics [net of Inx (provision) benelin
of (52), 52 and 510, respectively]

Reclassificwtion of met losses {zains) realized on
available-for-sale debi secwrities included in
imvestment imd other incomc, nel [nel of tix

benelii of 1, SO and 30, respectively]
Chther comprehensive income {loss)
Comprehensive income

2025 2024 2023

g 6374 % 6270 § T.063
550 4 965 3,737

| (145 G 457

13,232 12,144 11,253

4,134 4,179 5122

5825 4,705 3054

3273 3,260 3117

1210 1,120 1,083

%4 RT3 97

5,467 5,253 4.267

Tivs K39 T3

1,827 1920 1.776

638 382 aTn

1,233 1351 2,930

2254 1,902 1,308

522 442 A

5 1,712 § I 460 & 279

Years ended March 31,
2025 x4 2023

5 | Pira # BB Lot & o
7 (7 37

2 il |
@ (&) (36}

5 1721 § 1452 5 43

Refer to the aceompanving Motes 1o Consolidaed Financis] Suicments,

il
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{Dollars in millions except share data)

March 31, Marchi 31,
H2s 2024

ASSETS
Cash and eash equivalants g 10760 § 8,370
Resiricied cash and cash equivalents 2470 1251
Invesiments in markeiable securiiics 4,351 4.50%
Fimance receivables, net of allowance for credit losses of 51,644 and
S1.637, respectively o1, 749 10,665
Investments in operating leases, net 30,0550 28,013
Cher assens 1S 4,373
Toaal asseis 5 1552 5 145,381
LIABILITIES AND SHARENOLDER'S EQUITY
Dbt L3 127,745 % 122,420
Diefermed ingong uixes 2973 3272
Chiher liabilities 7333 6,707
Tial liabilitics 138,05] 132,304
Connmiiments and contingencies (Refer io Nose Y)
Sharcholder”s equity:
Capital siock, mo par vabe (100,000 shires anihoreed; 21,500 issued

and cutstanding) wl Maseh 31, 2025 and 2024 L 915
Additionnl paid-in capital 2 2
Accumulnied ather comprehensive loss (56) (65}
Retuined camings 16,342 16,130
Total sharcholder's couily 17.243 16982
Tedal lisbilitics and sharcholder's cquity 5 155294 § 149 381

The following able presenis the assets and ligbilities of our consolidaied variable interest entitses (Refer io Mol B).

March 31, March 31,
225 2024

ASSETS

Finance receivalrles, net L RER L, .30
Investments m opering leases, net 10.722 10,274
Cligr assets 167 142
Toanl assels 5 44.847 § 41,546
LIABILITIES

Db 5 LT 5 34,137
Oiher ligkilities 72 i
Toaal liabilitics -] 17,789 5 34,401

Refer to the accompanying Nowes 19 Consolidated Financial Stiements,

[

171/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
COMSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
{Dollars in millions)

Accumulated
Additional other
Capital paid-iin  comprelicnsive  Retalned
siock capital (Joss) ineome _camings Total

Balance at March 31, 2022 5 915 5 28 (218 17,205 § 18101
el income - . - L r] QTG
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax - . (30) - {36)
Dividends - - - (2.315) 2 33%)
Bulance m March 31, 2023 5 215 § 2.5 (57)3 15649 5 16,509
Mel income - . - 1 460 1,460
Chher comprehensive loss, netof Lax . . (1:3] = (%)
Dhvidends ] i ! {4TER ) (T
Balance o March 31, 2024 5 915 S 2.5 (6535 16130 § 16983
Mel income - - - 1,712 1,712
Chiher comprehensive income, net of lax * 3 b - 2
Dividends - . - (0460 (1.460)
Balance m March 31, 2025 5 915 § 25 (36)5 16382 § 17.243

Refer to the accompanying Notes (o Consolidued Financinl Suiements.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{Dollars im millions)

Cash Mows From opemating sclivifies
Mel income

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05904)
ooOooood

YWears onded March 3],

Adpustments 1o reconcile net income g nct cash provided by aperting

activities:

Recognition of delormed meame and lees
Provision For crodit losses

Amirtiznbon of delomod cosls

Foreign currency ond other adjustments ko ke carryiing value of

financial instruments, net
Ml {gainsh |loases from myvestmeents i marketahle seeunties
Met change m-
Drerivative pssels
Oiber assels nd accmoed inlerest
Dielerred income taxes
Deerivative liahilities
Criber linbalities
Mt cish providied Ty operating activities

Cash Nows from imvesting sctivities
Parchase of investments in marketable secunibes
Procecds from sobes of myvestments in marketable seourities
Procecds from matunities of invesiments in marketakle securitics
Acquisition of finance receivables
Colleciion of fimance receivubles
Nel change m cartain wholesale recaavables
Acquixition of myvcstmonts in operaling leascs
Procecds from dupu-u‘h. of 1mvestments in opernting leases
Lo ferm loars to alfilinbes
Taynsents an lemg levm loans from alfilinies
Net change m financing suppon provided o aflilsales
Mher, net

Bt cash used in investing activilics

Cnsh Tows from (mancing sctivilies:
Proceeds from isstamee of debt
Payments an debi
Met change m commercial paper and ather shori-tenm financing
et change m financing support provided by affilistes
Dividend paid

Bt cish providied by (used in) financing activities

Pl increase (deenease) in cash and cash equivnlents and restneted cash and

casli equivilents

Cash and cash eyuivalenis nmil restneied cash and cash cquivalents al ihe

beginming of the period

Cash and cash equivalents and resincicad cash and cash cquivalenis ai the

end of the period
Supplemental disclosires:

Inferest paid, met

Iscome tuxes paid (received), net

Tizs 2024 2023
5 172 s 1460 % 979
4221 4301 5208
[EAH) (1,507) [1,797)
ThE 130 3
(T 1 A1 Lozt
4 1500 206
(1) (1459 375
15) 11} 10
4 4l (10H0)
{302} “5h 2173
1 [ %)
472 [BLIE (505}
6301 BRIS T30
631} 727 (2467)
0% 1,252 I 902
{22 NEl £
52,117} 54,54 (44,105
S1.241 A2 41309
267 (2 AL25 [RET LN
(17.870) {13,755) (9.617)
11,730 11,888 L1001
{1,556 {1,145) (76l
545 BT 40
7 (5 136)
(521 (74) (83}
(7681 ) (14,053} (8387}
47790 43413 3BT
(42,573} {33, 498) {35,374}
5 635 (1,088)
7 = -
(L Aady (0T [2.535)
1 K26 47 (2004}
PR 1333 (1247)
10,521 £ A%K 0735
2 ket R 10821 3 LR
5 50738 4010 3 2375
S 540§ 57§ 62}

Reler to the necompanying Moies o Consalidaed Financial Stiemenis,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars in millions)

Maote 1 — Basis of ifican i Pal

Maturre of Operations

Tovot Motor Credit Corporation {“TMCC) is @ wholly-owned subsidiary of Tovota Finomcial Services
Imgrmaiional Corporation (“TFSIC™), & California coporation, which is a whelly-ewned subsidiary of Toyota
Financial Services Corporation (~“TFSC™), a Japanese corporation. TFSC, i mam, 15 a whollyv-owned subsidiary of
Tovotn Mator Comporation (“TMC™), a Japanese corpoeation, TFSC manages TMO's worldwide financial services
operntions, References herein to the “Company™, “we”, “our”, and *15” denole TMOC and its consolidated
subsidianies. TMOC is marketed under (the brands of Tovoa Financial Serviees, Lexus Financial Serviees, Maeda
Financial Services ("MFS™), and Bass Pro Shops Financial Services.

We provide a vanety of lmance aod voluntary velicke and payvisent protection products aml services (o aulhorzed
Tovota and Lexus dealers or dealer groups, private label dealers or dealer groups, and, to a lesser extent, other
domestic and impon franchise dealers (cellectively referred 1o as “dealers™) and their customers in the United Simes
of America (the “U.5.") and Puerie Rico. Our busingss is substantially dependent upon the sale of Tovota, Lexus,
andd privaie lnbel vehicles.

Our products and serviges full primarily into the following citegorics:

L Finance (perations - We scquire retail instalhment sales contracts from dealers i the U5, and Pucrio
Rico (“retail conimets™ and leasing contracis nccounted for as operating leases (“lease comracis™) from
dealers inthe US. We collectively refer to our retail and lease condracits as the “consumer porifolio.”™
W aleo provide dealer lnascog, ehading wholesale Mancing, working capital laans, revolving lines
of credit and real estate financing to dealers in the LS. and Puerio Rico, We collectively refer to our
dealer finmpcing portfolio a5 the “dealer porfolio.”

- Felwntary Prevection Opevatfons - Through Teyo Mosor Insurance Services, Inc.. o whollv-owned
subsidiary, and its insurance company subsidiaries (collectively referred 10 as “TMIS™), we provide
uiiderwiiliing wibd ¢labins admbnksirathon fof volublary veliele mind pavinenl protectbon products sald by
dealers in the U.S. Our voluntary vehicle and payment pretection products include vehicle service,
guarmieed aute prodection, prepaid muinienance, excess wear wwd use, tire mvd wheel protection. key
replaccment protection, and used vehicle limited warranty contracts voluntary protection products™).
TMIS also provides covernpge and relmed sdministrative services 10 certuin of our alMiliates i the LS,

Onuir finance operations are located in the U5, and Puerto Rico with carning assets principally sourced through
Tovotn, Lexus, and private label dealers. As of March 31, 2025, approximately 20 percent of retail and lease
coniracts were concentrated in California, 14 percent in Texas, and 7 percent in New York, Our voluntary
pratection opertions are located inthe LS, As of March 31, 2025, approximately 23 percent of voluntary
profection contracts were concentrated in Califormia, 6 percent in New York, and 5 percent i Maryland. Any
mierial adverse changes 1o ihe cconomies or applicable laws in ihese siates could have an adverse effeci on our
Mnancial condition and results of opertions,

{hler Mutters

We contimue to cvaluate the privaie label financial services business, including parinening with or transiioning ihe
business io our allilioies. In fiscal 2025, as il was deemed 1o be in the best interesis of e Company and iis sole
sharcholder, TFSIC, the Board of Directors of TMOC approved ihe transition of the origination and financing of
new mulemotive Mnanee and lease conmmets under e MFS Agrecinient 1 Tovols Finaneial Savings Bank (“TFSB™),
u Mevada thrft company owned by TFSIC and an unconsolidated affibiate of TMOC (the “MFS Transition™). The
MFS Transition commenced and was substantially completed during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2025, No existing
TMOC private label assels or hiabilities were iranstioned 1o or acquired by TFSH and po ssgnificant cesis were
imcurred in conmection with the MFS Transition.  Addilionally, in connection with the MFS Transition, TMCC has
enered inlo cenain servicing agreements with TFSB 10 service the retail and lease contracts originaled under the
MFS Agreement by TFSB, TMCC will cominue so offer voluniary protcction products 1o MFS customers,

65
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars in milhions)

Maie 1 - B af nl ifi A nting Palici antinu

Baisix th\mﬁm e Prl'h:{pkw q,f{'dln.rdh'ddl.‘l:nﬂ

Chur pecoumting and financial reporting policies conform to accounting principbes penerally scoepied in the United
States of America (“ULS. GAAP"), Cenain prior period amounts have been reclassified 1o conform 1o current pericd
presentation. Related party transactions presented in the Consolidited Financial Statemenis are disclosed in MNojg 12
= Related Party Transaclions

The consolidated Minancial siatements include the acconnts of TMOC, its wholly-owned subsidianes and all vanable

imterest emities ("VIE™) of which we are ile primary benellclary. All intercompany iransactions and balavees have
becn climinated.

Ulye of Estimates

The preparateon of financial stiements in conformity with US. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumpiions that affect the reporied amounts of asseis and labilitics and the disclosure of contingent assels and
Iaabiliics an the date of the finmmcial stdements wnd the reporied amounts of revenues and expenses during s
reponing period,  Bocanse of inherent uncenainty involved in making cstimates, penal results eould differ from
those cstimates and asswmptions, The sccounting cstimates that are most impartam 1o our busimess are the
accumuliied depreciation related 10 our ivestments in operifing leases and the allowance for credil fosses,

Kignificant Aceanmting Policies
Onir sagnifecant accounting podicics ane found in (he respective Note for which the policy is applicable,

Revently Adopted Accownting Ciuidanci

Om April |, 2023, we adopeed ASU 202202, Crediy Losres (Topie 32600 Trouhled Deli Restracturings and Viniage
Ihiscfostres, on o prospective basis. This ASU elomntes the accounting guidance for Troubled Debit Restruciurings
by creditors thit have adopiad ASU 2006-13, Firanclal Ssieusents — Credil Losaes (Topie 3260 Measurement aff
Crodit Losses oo Fimgecia! Insiramrents, while enlmncing disclosure requirements for certain loan refinanging and
restruciurings made (o borrowers expericncing financial difficulty. Additionally, de ASU adds the requirement 1o
disclose current period gross write-olTs by year of originmion for finoncimg receivables. The adoption of this
guidance did not have a material imgact on our consolidated Anancial stuements and relaved disclosures. Refer o
Mote 3 - Frnange Regeivables, MNet for additional information,

On March 31, 2025, we adopted ASL 2023-07, Segrient Heparring Topde 2500, Improvemenis o Reporiabile
Segprvirnt [iselosire requirements. This ASU enhances disclosure requitemients for reportable sepments primanly
through enhanced disclosires about significant sepment expenses. The adopiion of this guidance did not have a
muterial impact on o consolidmed Mnancial statements or related disclosures, Refer 1o Notg 14 - Scoment
Informution for additional infommadion.

Accounting Gridunce Fawed Bur Noo Vet Adopred

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASL 202309, froome Tieves (Topde 7908, requiring nwre gramlar disclosure
of the componenis ol income tixes, This ASLU is effective for us on March 31, 2026, with carly adoption permined,
We are current by evaluating the impact of this standard on our consolidated financial staiements and related
disclosures,

In November 2024, the FASB ssucd ASU 202403, locome Statewront - Beporting Comprohensive fncoume
Expenve Déaagervganion INwelosures (Sulropde 220-400, requiring disclosure in (he notes to the Minancial statements
fior specified information about cenain costs and expenses. In January 2025, the FASE issued ASU 202501,
clanfying the eifectve date of ASLI 2024-0%. This ASL s elfective for us on March 31, 2025, with carly adoption
permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact of this standard on eur consolidated financial statements and
reloted desclosures.

LL 4]
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions )

Maote 2 - C Cash Equivalents and Investments in & | ril

Casds ond casle q.lll'llrh'n!‘:

Cash and cash equivalents represent highly liquid imvesiments with mutunitics of three months or less from the dade
of aequisiteon and may include money marke! insiruments, conungreial paper, cenificates of deposit, LS,
povernment and agency obligations, or similar instnanenis.

Resuricted caly aond caxh équivalevnts

Restricted cash and cash equivalems inchide customer coflections an scouritized receivahles o be distnbuted 10
investors as pavmenis o the reled secured noies and loans pavable, which are primarily relaed 10 secouritization
tmusts, Restricted cash equivalents may also contain procecds from certain debt issuances for which the use of the
cash s restricted,

Tuvestmnents in rarketadie secaritics
Investments in marketable sceuritics consist of debi scouritics and equity imvestments,

We chassify all of our debt securities as available=for-sale (“AFS™), Except when the fir value option 15 clected,
AFS deb securiiies are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains or losses included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (CAOQCT™), net of applicable tixes, Inlerest income 15 recognired on an accruzl basis and
determimed wsing the effective inierest method, Realized gains and losscs from sales of AFS debi scourities are
determmsed wsing the spocific sentification method or first in first owl method.  Dividend income, interest incoang,
and realived gains and losses froin the sales of AFS debi securities are included i lvestment and other income
{less), net i our Consolidsted Statements of Income.

We cbecred the fair valug opiion for cerain debi securitics held within one of our imvestment portiolios for
operitomn] case given e slee and composition of this portfolio. Al debl seeurities withbi this speciiie porfolis are
recorded at fair valoe with changes i fair value included in Investiment and ether income (loss), net in our
Consolidated Statememts of Income. AFS dedt securities for which the fair value option is elected are nol subject 1o
credit loss impairment evabition. As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, we held AFS debi securities for which ihe fair
virlue option was elecied of $829 million and 5778 mullion, respectively. The difference between the aggregate fuir
vislue and the aggregaie ungaid principal balance of AFS debi securities for which the Tair value option was elected
was m unnelized loss of S601 million and $70 mullion as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively,

All equity investments are rocorded at fair value with changes in fair valne included in Investmient and other incomse
{loss), net m our Consolidated Statemenis of Income. Bealtsed gams and losses from sales of equity investmens ane
determimed wsing the first in first out method and are included in Tnvestment and other income (loss), net in our
Consolldated Siatements of Income,

0T
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars in millions)

nis in Mar

liivestments wi innrketible securities consisted ol the ol lowing:

_ March3l 2008 00
Amoriised  Unrcalised  Unrealized Fuir
cosl __ains Iosscs willne
Available-for-sale debt securities:
LS. governmem and agency obligations 5 X4 5 208 (£3) % 743
Farcign governmen and agency ohligations 2] - i 20
Municipal debd secunitics H] | {n ]
Connmercial paper 15 - - 15
Corporate debl secumniies 458 2 (1) 450
Momgape-backed securilhes:
L5, govemment agency 146 - (%) 141
Non-agency residendial 12 - [L}] 11
Nog-agency commercial 30 - (5) 45
Assei-backed secuninies 136 I {3) 134
Totnd available-for-snle debt securities 5 1,700 § 6 5 {139 1,567
Ecpuaty investments 30014
Total imvestments m marketahle securities 5 4581

March 31, 2024
Ammortised  Unrealived  Unirealized Fair

col gaing losses valie

Available-For-sale debt securilies:
U.S. governmend and agency obligations 5 783§ 1§ #7) § 697
Forzign governmen and agency obligaions 13 - (1 12
Municipal debd secunities L - (1 7
Corporale debit securies 477 2 (44) 430

Mongage-hacked securities:

LS. govemment agency 123 - (5 113
Non-agency resideniial 12 - (1 11
MNog-ageiey connnereial [ - (% 33
securnitics 142 | {5y _ 138
Tozal available-for-sale debt securitics 5 1622 $ 4 5 (158%) & 1 465
Exquiry Invesimenis 3.037
Toral invesiments m marketable secuntics 5 4 505

A pontion of our equity invesimenis are invesimenis in funds that are privately placed and managed by an open-end
investment mamgement companry (he “Trust™), 17 we chect 10 redeemn shares, the Trust will normally redeem all
shares for cash, but may, in unusual circumsiances, redeem amounts exceeding the lesser of $250 thousand or 1
prereent of te Trust's assel valug by payment in kind of secuntics held by (he respective Tund during any M-y
perind.

We also dnvest in actively maded open-end muiial funds, Redempiions are subject o nomal terms and conditions
s described in cach fund's prospectus,

]
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dellars in millions)

nis in %

[irrealized Loives v Securilics

The fellowing table presenis the aggregate fuir value and unrealized losses on AFS debd seounities in a continuous

unsealived loss position:

March 31, 2025
Less than 12 months 12 months or binger Tolal
Uneealized Ulmrealined Uneenlized
Available-for-sabe debl secunties: Faur valie hssacs Fair valoe msscs Fabr value lussies
115, government and agency obligations ¥ LA {15 54 03 (52) ¥ 3 5 {83)
Feaeign govenument and agency obligations T - L [1N] 13 (s
Munscipal debi securitics - - 2 i 2 (L0
Coaporste debi sacurities. 41 () 268 (3% EE L (RN
Mon gage-backed securitics
Uk, Grovernment agency L] i i 141 {117 (B3}
Won-ageney residentinl 1 - 7 [1}] 8 (i
MNon-agency comimercial i - 11 i5) Ll 51
Asscl-hacked secuanitics ar - 41 3 i ] {31
Taokal svsilsble-For-sale debd seountics 1 2§ (B ] 0ih % {137 % L8 S {139
March 31, 2024
Less tham 12 meomibs 12 months or longer Toal
Unreahzad Unnealired [nrealscil
Available-for-sale debi secuntics: Fair value losses Faar value losses Fair value losses
U5, government and agency obligations ] MT 3 (1) 5 3G 3 ()3 633 % (57}
Fescign government and agency obligations | - i (1] 9 (A}
Mumnscipal debd secunities. - - 2 i 2 {1}
Corporzie debl secuntics 31 (3 ELL] el 3T 149
Mon gage-backed securitics
LS. Governmenl agemey £l (y a9 [E1] 106} {5)
Non-agency residentin] 1 - 7 i B iy
Maik-agency commercial | = 53 k] H L]
Assel-backed secunties 17 . 58 {50 15 (5)
Total available-for-sale debd socumities H FTE {17 § g51 3 {i41y 3 13711 § L15R)

An allewance for credit losses is established when 1 is determined that a credit loss has occurred. As of March 31,
2025 and 2024, management determimed credit losses for securities in an unrealized boss position were ol
significant. This analysis considered 3 vaniety of Gictors including, but nod limited 10, performance indicalors of the
issuer, defimlt rutes, industry analyst reports, credit ratings, and other relevant inlsrmation.

Caerins ennad Lonsvex cint Sercanrities

The following iable reprosents gaims wnd bosses on our investments i marketnble securities presented n our

Consolidated Sttcments of Income:

Available-for-sale debi securnlics:
Unrealized gains (losses) on gecuritics

for which the fair value option was elocied
Realized losses an sales, net

Equiry investmeins:

Unrealized paims (losscs)
Realized losses on sales, net

[

Years ended Masch 31,
2028 2024 2023
5 a9 5 (I3 § {17
5 5 & i s (M)
§ 42 5 296 3 (297)
§ (563 3 (137 5§ 25
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dellars in millions)

nis in Mar

Cantraetived Maburiies

The amortized cost and fair value by contractual maturitics of available-for-sale debt securitics are summiarized in
the folkowing mble, Acnml matrities may differ from comraciual muurities because certain borrowers have the
right 1o call or prepay ceriain obligations.

March 31, 2025

Amonized cost Fair value

Available-Tor-sale debi securities:

Dhie within | year 5 103 § LLIE]

Dhe aifter | year through § years Elik] 154

Due after 5 years through 10 years 436 421

Dhig afller 10 yeors 452 35M

Morgage-backed and nsset-backed securities ' 344 331
Toaal k] 1700 & 1,567

b Maortgnge-hacked and asset-backed secarities are shown sspamtely From other matunty groupings os thess seoarities have
nniliigthe mustarity dlales.

k]
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dellars in millions)

Mote - F i {

Fimance receivables, nel consists of retal loan and dealer products ponfolio segmems, amd mcludes deferned
origination costs, deferred income, and allowance for credit losses. Finance receivables, net also includes
seeuritized retail receivables, which represent retanl receivables that have been seld for legal purposes
securitiavion irisis bl coutinue 10 be included in our consolidnied Mnanciol stalensents, as discussed further in Nole
A~ Vanphle Interest Entities. Cash Nows from these seouritized retadl receivables are available only for the
repaymen of debi 1ssued by these trusts and other obligntions arising from the scouritization fransactions. They are
nol avaitable for payment of our ether obligations or 1o satisly claims of our other creditors,

Finanee reccivables are classified as held-for-investment 1 the Company has the intent and ability to hold the
receivables for e Foresecable fumre or uniil maturity or payolT As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, g1l linance
receivables were classificd as held-for-investmeni.

Revemies associnted with retail and dealer linancing are recognized (o approximale a constant eeetive vield over
the contract lerm. Iscremsental direct fees and costs mcurmed in connection with the acquisition of retail contmets
and deailer Mnancing receivables, including inggntive and rle participation payments made 1w dealers, arg capitalized
wnd mmortized (o approximate o constant effective yield over the term of the related contracts. Payments received on
subvention and siher consumer incentives are delermed and recognised 1o approximaie a consiant effective yield over
the term of the related contracts.

For both retail loan and dealer preducts ponfolio segments, acensed interess, defermed incorme, and deferred
origination costs, iT wry, are wrillen off within Provisien for credit losses a1 the earlier of when an secownt is decmed
to be uncollectible or when an acoount is greater than 1 20 days past due

Finance recevables, net consisted of the lollowing:

March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

Feapil receivables ! 5 ET4l% 8 87,150

Dealer inanseing 16,521 16,081

103,939 103,331

Delierred ongination costs 1227 1,399
Defermad income (1.773) {1424}

Allovwance for credit losses

Retail receivables {1.544) {1,549}
Dealer financing (104 (55}
Totnl allewanee for credit losses (1,644) (1,637}
Finance receivabics, net -] 101,749 % 101,669

' Inclodes gross secuntised retml recervables of $34.4 billhon and 5315 ballion as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Accmed interest related to finance receivables is presented in Other asaets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and
was 8383 milliom mmd $396 million ar March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

T
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars in millions)

Mote I-F v ] i

Credit (uality fndicators

We are exposed 1o credit risk on our finance reccivables. Credit risk is the risk of loss anising from the failure of
customers of dealers e mcel the lerms of thedr comracts with us or otherwise Tail 10 perform as agreed,

Reteil Loan Porifidio Segmesd

The retal loan portfolio segment consists of ong class of finance receivables, While we use varvows credit quality
mictnics to develop our allowance for credil bosses on the retail loan portfolio segment, we primari by wilize the aging
of the individual sccounts to monitor the credin quality of these fmanee receivables. Based on our experience, the
payment status of borrowers is the strongest indicator of the credit quality of the underlying receivables. Payment
stitus also impacts charge-olfs.

Individunl borrower accounts within the retsil loan porifolso segment are segregated mto aging calegories based on
the mumber of diys past due. The aging of firance reccivables is updyied moathly

The following fables present the amorized cost basis of our retail loan pon falio by origination fisenl year by eredil
quality indicaror based on number of days past due:
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The amartized cost of retail laan porifolio excludes acomicd interest of 5313 million and 5318 million an March 31,
2025 and 2024, respectively. The preceding tbles include comracts greater than 120 days past due, which ane
recorded an the fair vahee of collaicral fess estimated cosis o sell, and contracis in bankrupacy.
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Mote - F v bl ontinu

Phealer Prewincis H’.lrﬂﬁ'l.l'ar: Kegmicenf

The dealer products porifelio segment consists of three classes of finance receivables: wholesale, real estate, and
working capital (includes both working capital and revolving lines of crediny, All loans outstanding foe an individual
dealer or dealer group, which mcludes afMiliated entitics, are appregated and evaluaied collectively by dealer or
dealer group. This reflects the interconnecied nature of financing provided 10 our individual dealer and denler group
customers, and their affilined entities.

When assessing the credii quality of the finance receivables within the dealer producis portfalio segmeni, we
sepregale the Ninance receivables account balances imo four catcgories representing distingt credit quality indicabors
brised on intermal msk assessitents, The ineril risk assessmenls fog all fnance receivables within the dealer
proeducts ponfolio segment are updated on a monthly basis.

The fowr credin quality indicators arc:
= Performing — Account not classified as either Credit Watch. At Risk or Definlhi:
- Credit Walch ~ Account designaied for elevated aention,

- Al Risk - Account where there is an imcreased likelihood that default may exist based on qualitative and
cuamitative factors: awd

- Defimult = Account 15 pol currently meeting comtraciual obligations or we have temporanly waived
comain contraciual requirements

The following tables present the amortized cost basis of our dealer products poniolio by credin quality indicator
based on intemal risk assessments by origination fiscal year:
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For the twelve months ended March 31, 2025, there were no gross charge-oils in our dealer produgt partfolia,
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For the twelve months ended March 31, 2024, there were 10 gross charge-ofls in our dealer product portfolio.

The amartized cost of the dealer products portfolio cxcludes accrued interest of 570 miflion and $TE million at
March 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, the amount of linc-of-credin arangements
thai are converied B0 ferm loans b each reparimg peried was not significant, reEpectively,

Past Diie Finaice Recetvables by Class

Substantially all finance receivables do not invelve recoursz to the dealer in the event of customer defiault. Finance
reccivables inchede contrets greater than 120 davs past dug, which are recorded at the fair value of collaeral less
estimaied cosis 1o scll, and contructs i bankrupicy. Coniracs for which vehicles hove been repossessed are
excluded. For all finanee receivables, we defing “past due™ as any payment, ingluding principal and smerest, thal is
b Beast 30 days pust the contractual doe date. For any customer who is granted a payment extension wsder an
exlensi o program, (e aging of the recgivable is adjusted for the number of days of the exiensson granted,

The following iabkes present the agmg of the amorived cost basis of our finance receivables by class:

March 31, W25

O Diays or
- 54 ) = W M0 Drays or arealer past

Mays [y greater  Tiowal Pass Toal Finance  due and

past due  pastdue  past due due Currenl _receivables aECruing
Retail loan § 1458 % 418 8 187 § 2063 5§ B4509 S HGET2 8 1o
Whaolesale = = « = 6498 6498 -
Real estale - - - - 5184 5184 -
Working capital = = - = 48359 4,830 -
Total £ 145 § 418§ 187 5 2063 E lﬂligiﬂ 5 103,303 5 110
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Maoe - F valbles, N ontinu
March 31, 2024
W) Dhys or
-5 6080 90 Daysor greater pasi
Days Days greater Total Past Towl Finance  due and
past due  pasidwe  past dug due Current receivables accruing
Rl loan £ 10k § 45 § 2§ 31I63 5 RARGD S5 K7,135 % 142
Whalesale - - - - AT 6673 -
Real esiie - - - - 4,804 4,854 -
Working capital - « - - 40614 4614 -
Total 5 lIISvliz 5 451 § 210 '8 23 S lﬂliﬂoi] 5 103 !ﬂﬁ L 142
Lavaw Modifications

Under cenain cirenmstances, we may agree to modify the terms of an exasting loan with a borrower for vanms
reasons, meluding a borrower experiencing lancial difficulties. We evaluate all loan modifications. which
generally represent a cominuation of the existing loan and et 4 new Ioan. For borrowers expericncing financial
difliculiies within the retail loan portfolio segment, we may provide contrac enn extensions. For borrowers
cxperiencing financinl difficultics within the dealer product portfolio segment, we muay provide contract term
CXICHsions, nlerest rale adjustmens, waivers of baan covenanis, or any combination of \he three. The cffect of these
madifications is alrendy mcluded i the allowanee for credit losses because our estimated allowance represcnts
currently expected credin hosses,

The wmortized cost at March 31, 2025 and 2024 of the loons modified during fiscal 2025 and 2024 was ot
significani. The unpnid principal balances, net of recoveries, of loans charged ofT during ihe reponing period ihat
were modified within twelve months preceding delfauli were not significant for the twelve months ended March 31,
2028 and 2024
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N - Wi Tor

Managemeni develops and documents the allowance for credil losses on finnce receivables based on two ponlolio
sepments. The determination of portiolio sepments is bused primarily on the qualitntive consideration of the nature
of our business operaizons and the chamcieristics of the underlving lnance receivables, as follows;

- Retuil Loan Porifolio Segment - The retal loan pertfolo sepment consists of relail comracts acquired
from dealers in the ULS. and Puerio Rico, Under a retail contract, we are granted a sceurity inkerest in
the underlying collateral which consisis primanly of Tevot, Lexus, and private label vehicles. Based
on the commaon risk charactenistics associated with the fmance reccivables, the retail loan porifolio
sepment ks considered a single class of finance receivable.

L Dealer Products Perifolio Segment — The dealer producis porifaho segment consists of wholesale
financing, real estare loans, woarking capital loans, and revolving lines af credit o dealers inthe LS. and
Pucrio Rico. Whelesale financing is primarily collimeralized by new or used vehicle fnventory with the
outstanding balance Muctuating based on e level of inventory, Working capital loans and revelving
lies of credit are granted for working capital purposes and are secured by dealership asscis. Real estaie
loans are collateraliaed by the underlying real estate, ane underwritien primarily on a loan-to-value basis
witd ore typically for a fixed tem. Based on the nisk charucieristics associpted with the underlying
finance receivables, the dealer products pontfolie segment consists of three classes of finance
receivables: whelesale. workmg capital (includes both working capital and revolving lines of credil),
and renl estare.

Munagement s estimate of lifetime expecied credin losses is based on an evaluation of relevant informmation about
past events, current consditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the fure calleciability of the
finsinee recelvables, Management's evalimtion tkes into consideration the risks in (e reti] loan ponfolio and dealer
products portfiolio, past loss experience, delinquency trends, underwriting and collection practices. changes in
portficlio composition, economic forecasts and other relevant faciors.

Methodelogy Used o Develup the Alfowance for Credin Losses

The allowance for credit losses 1s measured on a collective basss when loans have similar risk characienistics. Loans
that do not share similar risk charscteristics are cvaheated on an individunl basis.

We measure expected losses of all componeils of finance recervables on ab amorteed cost basis, excluding accried
interest, and inchsding ofT-balance-shect lending commitments that are not wnconditionally carcellable by TMCC.
Estinmted expected credit losses for off-balance-sheet lending commitments within our dealer products portlolio are
included in Other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. W have elected 1o exclude acerued imerest from
the meassrement of expected credil losses as we apply policies and procedures thal result in the timely write=oiTs of
acensed inderest. Accrued interest is written of T within allowsnce for credit losses an the earlier of when an accoum
is deemed 1o be uncollectible or when an account is greaser than 120 days pasa duc.

Retall Loan Pertfolie Seqwen

Thig Bevel of credit risk i our relail loan portfolio segment is mfluenced by various Gaciors such as ccongmic
conditions, the used vehicle market, credin quality, contract struciure, and collection strtegics and practices, The
allowance for eredin lesses is measured on a collective basis when loans have samilar rsk charscteristics such as
lonn-to-value mtio, book paymeni-io-income miio, FICD score gt origmation, collateral ivpe (new or used, Lexus,
Tovotn, or private label), comtraet ferm, and other relevant factors. We use statisncal models 1o cstimate lifetime
expected credit losses of our retwl loan pontfolio sepment by applying probability of defaul and loss gven default o
the exposure at defaul on i loan level basis,

Probabality of defanlt models are developed from miermil nsk scormg models which consider vanables such as
delinguency statis, historical defuil frequency, snd othier credin quiality indicators such a5 loan-to-vilue ratio, hook
payncnl-to-incame mlio, FICO score al onigination, collateral type, and contrat enn.

T
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Loss given defoult models fosecast the extent of losses given hal o delaull has occurred and consider variables such
as colleral, trends in recoveries, historical loss severity, and other contract stmchere variables, Exposure of default
represents the expecied outstanding principal balance, including the effecis of expected prepayment when
applicable.

The lifenme expected credit besses incorparate the probabiliny-weighied forward-looking macrocconomic fonecasis
Tor basclme, favorable, and adverse scenanos. The loan lifetime is regarded by management as the reasonahle and
suppomable peniod, W usg macrogconomic forecasts froan o (hied porty amd updie such forecasts quanerly

O an ongoing basis, we review our madels, incheding macrocoonomic factors, the selection of macrocconomic
seemiios and aehr weightiag o gimure ey rellect i risk of e poalolio.

IT management does nol belicve the models adequately reflect lifetime expected credit losses, o qualitative
adiusiment is made o reflect management judgment regarding observable changes in recent or expecied coonomic
trends and conditions, porifolo composition, and edher relevant faciors. While mianagement uses the best
information available 1o make such evaluations, fture adjustments 1o the allowanee for credit losses may be
necessary i conditions differ substantially from te assumpions used in making the evaluations.

Dealer Products Portfolio Segment

Thie level of credit risk in our dealer products porifolio sepment 1 influciced prinmanly by the fnoncial streipib of
dealers within our portfolio, dealer concentrition, collmeral quality, and siher cconomic factors. The linancial
strengih of dealers within aur portfolio is influenced by, among ather faciors, peneral cconomic conditions, the
overall demand for new and used vehicles and e fnancial condition of swomotive manufacierers, The allowance
fior credit losses ks established for both owtstanding dealer finance receivables and certain wnfunded off=balmnce sheet
lending cormmitmenis. The allowance for credil losses is measuned on 4 collective basis when loans have similar
risk characienstics such as dealer group mermal nisk rating and loan=o=value mtos. We nwasure lifctime expecied
credit losses of our dealer products porifolio scgmeni by applying probability of defauli and loss given defauli o the
exposure al defaull oo o boan level basis, Probability of default 15 primanly estabhished based on miemal risk
mssessments. The probability of defiult model also considers qualitative fctors related to macroeconomic slooks.
Loss given defiult 15 established based on the nature and market value of the collateral, loan-to-value matios and
othier credit quality indicators. Exposure at defauh represents the expected cutstanding principal balance. The
lifetime of the loan or lending commitment is regarded by managament as the reasonable and supportable period.

O an ongoing basis, we review oar madels, inchsding mactocoomomic outleoks, (o ensure they refect the risk of the
portfiolio.

M mamagement does not belicve the models adequately reflect lifetime expected credit losses, o qualitative
adjustioen s made 10 reflect mumagernent judgment regarding observable chiunges o recent of expecied ccononic
trends und conditions, ponfolio compositien, and either relevant factors. While management uses the best
infonmation available 1o nake such cvaluations, future adjustments 1o the allowance for credit losses may be
necessary il conditions differ substantially from the assumpiions used in making the evaluations.

.Jl'm.unﬁng 'ﬁ).r the Af.ﬁ:ﬂmﬁr Credid Fosses

Increnses to the allowance for credil losses are sccompanicd by commesponding charges 1o the Provision for credi
losses in our Consolidated Stmements of Income. The uncollecuible portion of finance receivables is charged 10 e
allowance for credit losses ot the carlier of when an accoun) s deemed 1o be uncollectible or when an account is
greater than 120 davs past due. In e event we repossess the collateral, the receivable is charped-ofl and we record
the colluteral at its estinued fir viahee less costs 10 sell and report it in Othier is<ets on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Recoveries of fMinance reccivables previously charged off as wncollectible are creditgd o the allowance for
credit losses.

T
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Thee followang tables provide information related o our illowance for credil losses for fnance recevaliles mwl
certnin off-balance sheet lending comamitments by portfolio seoment:

_ Yearended March 31, 2025
Rewil lpan Dealer producis  Tolal

Beginning balance, April 1, 2024 5 1.54% 5 135 5 1,684
Charge-olls (HRT) - {847y
Recoverics 139 - 139
Provision for credit losses T4 25 708
Ending baktance, March 31, 2025 * 8 1,544 3 160 5 1,704

! Ending balance inchdes $60 million of allowance for eredil lsses recosded in Osher lishilities on the Consolsdated Ralinee
Sheot whach is related 1o oiT-halance sheet lemiding commitmenis m the dealer products portfolio

Y ear ended March 31, 2024
Rl loan  Dealer products Total

Beginning halatice, April 1, 2023 5 140 S R 1513
Charge-olfs (TR} - (776}
Recoveries 10s - 108
Provision for credil losses T87 53 2310
Ending balance, Muarch 31, 2024 1 = 1540 % 135 § ]iBQH

| Endinig babinee tielisdes $47 million of allowance foe ercdil losses fecorded in Oilber Baluliies oi the Consolidsicd Balanee
Gheet which is relsted 1o ofl-balance sheet lending commitments in tbe dealer products porifolio

Our allowance for credit losses remained relmtively consistent as of March 31, 2025, compared to March 31, 2024,

We have elected 1o exclede accrued interes) from the mensunement of expecied crodit losses a5 we apply policies and
procedures ihat resuli in e timely wnite-olfs of accrued mierest. Accrued ingerest 15 wrillen off within allowance
fior crodin losses at the earlicr of when an accownt 15 decmed 10 be uncollectible or when an account 15 greater than
1200 days past due.

Finance receivables for ihe dealer producis porifolio segmeni as of March 31, 2022 includes 51,3 billion in finance
receivables thal wre puaranteed by Tovola Motor Nornh Anserica, Ine. (TMNATY, and 5249 million in Gnance
receivables (al are guaranteed by third-pany private Tovotn distrilvidors, Finance receivables for the dealer
products portfolio segment as of March 31, 2024 includes $1.3 billion in finance reccivables thit are guarameed by
THMMA, and 2231 million in franee receivables that are guarameed by thind-pany private Toyela disinbutors,
These finance recervables are relued 1o cenain Toyota ind Lexus dealers and other thind parties to whom we
previded financing at the request of TMNA and third-party private Toyota distributors,
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Maode § — Investm in i bt

Invesuments i operating leases, nel consises of vehicle lease contracts acquired from dealers, and inchdes deferred
origination fees and costs, deferred income, investment tax credits, and accumulaicd depreciation. Non-cash
investing selivities related 1o mvestment tx credilts on investmens in operating leases for e twelve momths ended
Mhlarch 31, 2025 and 2024 were 5505 million and 5250 muillion, respeciively. Generally, lessees have the ability to
extend their lease 1erm in six month iscrensents up 1o o total of 12 months from the origingl lgise maturity dale. A
fease can be temminuted at any time by satisfying the obligations usder the lense contract. Early lenmination
programs may be occasionally offered 1o cligible lessees. At the cad of the lease, the customer has the option to buy
the leased vehicle or retumn the vehicle o the dealer.

Securitized invesiments in operating leases represent benelfcial inleresas in a pool of certain vehicle bexses that have
been sold for legal purposes 1o sceuritization irusts bul contmue Lo be included i our consolidated financial
statemenis 05 discussed further in Mote 8 - Varable Interest Entitizs, Cash [bows from these secaritired mvesiments
in aperating leases are available only for the repayment of det issued by these rsts and other obligations arising
from the securitization ransactions, They are nod available for payment of our other obligations or 1o satisfy claims
of our other creditors,

Operting lease revenues are recogniced on a sirighi-line basis over the weonn of ihe lease. 'We have mde an
accoumting policy election to exclude from the consideration in the contract, and rom variable payments net
included i the consideraiion in ihe contract, sales and aiher faxes assessed by a govemmenial authonity that are boith
imiposed on amd concurrent with a specific lease revemse-producing transaction and colkected from aestomers.
Deferred fees and costs include incentive paymeits made 1o dealers and sequisition fees oollected from customers.
Deferred income includes payments regeived on affilinte and non-afMilaed third-party sponsored subvention and
other incentive programs. Both deferred fees and costs and deferred income are capitalized or defemed and
amortiaed on a stright-line basis over the conmmet enn. The acenil of revenue on investments in operating leases
i5 discontinued a8 the tume an account 15 determined to be uncodlectibde and subsequent revenue s reconized only 1o
the extenl a payment is received. Operating leases may be restored 10 aceral stans when Dudure payments are
reasonably assured.

Vehicle Leave Residwal Valoes

Contractual residual values of vehicle lease comtracts are estinuded ol lease inception by examinimg exiernal mdustry
data, the anticipated Tovots, Lexus, and prvaie label prodoct pipeline and our own expericnce.  Factors considened
i this evaluation ionghede macrocconomic forecasts, new vehicle pricing, new vehicle incentive programs, new
vehicle sales, vehicle femtures and specifications, the mix and level of used vehicle supply, the level of ourremt used
vehicle vatues, al fuel prices. We arg exposed 1o o nisk of loss 1o the extent the customer rehwms the vehicle and
the value ol the vehicle is lower than the residual value esiimated ni inception of the lease or if the number of
returned velugles 15 hagher than anticipated.

Depreciation on operating leases is recognized using the siraight-line method over the lease term,. The depreciable
basls is ihe original acquisition cost of the vehicle less the estimaied residual value of the vehicle 1 ihe end of the
lease lenm. Om a quarterly basis, we review the estimated end-of-1erm market values and retum rates of beased
velileles 1o assess the appropriatencss of the carrving values o lense-cnid. Factors affecting Use estimated end-of-
term market valwe are similar io those considered i the evahmtion of nesidual values at lease inception discussed
above. Adjusiments 1 depreciation expense 1o reflect revised estingies of expecied marked values o lease
termination and revised retum mies are recorded prospectively on a straighi-Eine basis over the remaining lease termi.

We usg varous clanoels 1o s¢ll veliches reurmed at feasc-cnd, Lpon disposinion, te dilference between the net
book value of the lease and the proceeds received from the disposition of the asset, mcluding any insurance proceeds
is recorded as an adjusiment 1o depreciation on operating leases,

We evalume our invesiment in operating leascs portfolio for potential impainnent when we detenmine o inggering
event has ofcurred. When o triggerning evenl hos ocourred, we perfonm g 151 of recoverability by compariing the
expecied undiscounted fuare cash Nows (including expected residual values) over the remaining lease terms (o the
carrving vitlue of the asset growp, 101he 1281 of recoverabiliny idemifies a possible impairment, ihe mssel group's Fair
vitlug 15 measured in accordance with the fiir vahie measurement fmmework. An impuarment charge would be
recogmized for the amaaan by which the carrying value of the asset group cxcecds its estimated fair valhse and would
be recorded in our Consolidated Staements of Income. As of Manch 31, 2025 and 2024, there was no inpairment in
our investment in aperating krases por folio,
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Our depreciation palicy for operating keases incorporates our hisiorical expersence on carly Iermitatons due (o
customer defimlis into the uscful life of the vehicles. 'We consider the effects of opernting lease carly terminations
when determining depreciation estinmates, wihich are included as pan of accwmulated depreciation within Investnenis
in opersting leases, net on the Consolidaced Balance Sheeis nnd Depreciation on operating keases in the Consolidaled
Staterments of Income

Investments m operating leases, nel consisted of the following:

March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Investments m operating leases ' 5 36523 5 35,383
Deferred income (U55) (GO9)
Accumulated depreciation (5.478) (761}
liivestments wi operiting leses, el 5 I00EK 8 28,013

Y Ineludes gross securitised investmenits in operating kises of 3136 ballion amd $13.8 billion as of March 31, 2025
and 2024, respectively.

The following iable presens future minimuam lease paymenis due 1o us as lessor under investmenis in operating
leases after March 21, 2025:

Future mimimum lease

Years ending March 31, pavmenis on operating leases

2026 5 5330
20127 3,707
2028 1,324
2029 66
2030 3
Thereaticr -
Total s 1430

A portion of our operating lease contricts has historically wermimated priot to matunity, Future minimum lease
pavinenis shown above should not be considered indicotive of future cash collections,

KL}
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Mate 6 — Deris 1 ng Activi Interest Expens

Dertvaitive Instrumenis

Chur liabilitics consisi mainly of fixed snd variable rate debt, denominated in U5, dollars and varicus other
currencies, which we issue in the global capital markes, while our azsets consist primarily of LLS, dollar
denominaled, fixed rate receivables. W ender into inieresi rute swaps and foreign currency swaps lo economically
hedge the interest rate and foreign currengy nsks that result from the dilicrent chamcienstics of our asse1s and
Imbilitics. Our use of derivative transactions is intended to reduce long-term flichuntions in the fair value of assets
il Deabilivies consed by market movemems. All of our derivatives are coleporized as non designated for hedge
accounting, imd all of our dernvative activities are authorized and monitored by our management and our Assel-
Liabdliy Comminee which provides a framework for Minancial controls and govemnance 1o manage markel risk.

All dervative mstmuments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value, taking ino consideration the effects of
legally enforceable master neting agrecmients that allow us o net seitbe asset and liability positions and offsel cash
collateral with the same counterparty on a nel basis. Changses in the fair value of our denivative instruments are
recorded in Interest expense in our Consolidated Stotemenis of Income, The derivative instnuments are included as a
component of Other asseis or Other liabilities on our Consolidmed Balance Sheets

ihfaeiting of Derivatives

Accounting gusdance permiis the net presentation on our Consolidated Balance Sheets of derivative receivables and
derivative pavables with the same counterparty and the related cash collateral when a legally enforcesble masier
nelting agreement exists, or when the derivative receivibles and derivative payables mect all the conditions for the
right of scialf 1o exist, When we meet this condition, we chect 1o present such balances on a net basis.

her-the-Caunier (O TC™) Derivatives

Chur Inernitional Swaps and Derivatives AssoCimion Masier Agrecineigs are our masier nelling agrecmeids which
permil muliiple iransactions te be cancelled and seitled with 4 single net balance paid 1o cither party for ouwr OTC
derivatives. The masier netting agreements ilso contain reciprocal collaternl agrecmends which require the transfer
of cash collateral to the party i a nel a3s¢l position across oll imnsactions. Our collateral agreencils with
substantially all our counterpanics includc a zero threshold, Mull collateralization amangement, Although we have
daily valuatson and collaeral exchange arramgenients with all of our counterparties, due 1o the e required 1o maove
collateral, there may be a delay of up to one day between the exchange of collateral und the valuntion of our
denvatives. We would ool be required 10 post additional collateral to the counterparies with whom we were in a net
liability position at March 31, 2025, il our eredit mtings were to decline, since we fully collateralize without regard
to credit ranings with these counterpartics. In addition, as our collseral agreemems inchede legal right of offzer
pronisions, collater] smomis are netied agninst denvative asseis or denvative liabilities, and the net amount is
ingluded in Cither assets of Caher labilities on our Consolidated Balange Sheets,

Cevttrally Cleared Derivatives

For our centrally clearcd dervatives, variation margin paymems are legally characterized as senlement payments
wnd accoumied for with comesponding derivative positions as one unit of account as opposed to collateral. Initial
margin payments are separately recorded in Ciber assets on our Consolidated Balance Shegts, W perform valuation
and margin exchange on a daily basis. Similar 1o the OTC swaps, there may be a delay of up to one day between the
exchimge of margin paymnens and (e vahtion of our derivilives,
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Made 6 — tives, Hedging Activi i st Ex antin

Derrvative Activity fmpact on O Helated Finamcinl Stak

The fellowing tables show the financial statement line item and amount of our derivative assets and liabilitics that
arg reported on our Consolidaed Balange Shects:

March 31, 2025 March 3, 2024
Fair Fair
Notional valse Motional value
Other assels:
Imterest rmie swips 5 41880 S 63 5 TLEID S 1149
Forcign curtency swaps 1,497 132 1,759 LE
Tatal 5 45377 % 495 5  TISE0 8 1,238
Counterparty netiing (2073 (2463
Collaeral held (242) (851}
Carryving value of denivative contraces — Otler a3sels 5 4 5 41
Other linbilitics:
Imierest raie swups S M40 5 31§ 3R920 5 52
Forcign curreney swaps 7,026 717 T AR Flk
Tl 5 Tldes % TaR 5 46,353 8 970
Coumerpany nening (207) (346)
Collateral posted (514) inaly
Carmving value of derivative contracts — Other
liahilitics 5 17 5 2%

As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, we held excess collateml and vansion margin of 54 million and 55 mallion,
respectively, which we did not use 1o offser derivative assers and were recorded in Other liabilities on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, we posted initin] margin, excess collateral, and
visrtation marghin of SRR miillion and 5311 million, respectively, which we did iol use 1o offset derivative liabilithes
wned wias recorded in Other assets on our Conselidated Balance Sheets.

The followng tabbe summan zes the compoanents of mterest expense, ncluding the location and amownt of guns and
losses on derivative instrumenis and reladed hedped ifems, as reported in our Conselidsted Staiemenis of Income:

Years Ended March 31

225 2024 2023

Interest expense on debi 5 50667 S 4530 5 2919
Interest expense {incone) an derivatives 34 (651 b (504 )
Inierest expense on debt and denvatives 5,701 4275 2350
Cianines on b denominmed in

forcign currencics (M b 1LY (614}
(Gains} losses on foreign curmency swaps {108y (K} 805
Losses on LLS. dollar interest rte swaps 324 £ 513
Toeal imerest expenise s 5835 3§ 4705 % 3.054

Interest expense on debi and denvatives represemts nel intgrest setlements and changes in accruals, Gains ond losses
on derivitives and debt denominated in forcign currencies exclude net interest setibements and changes in accroals.
Cash Mows assockated with denvatives are repored in Net cash provided by operating sctivities i our Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows.

2
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Dbt g the related weighted average comractual inleres! rales are sumisarized oz follows:

March 31 2025 March 11, 2024
Weighted Weighied
averdge average
Face Carrying  coniracial Face Carrying  coniracival
villue value inkerest nikes value villue mileres miles
Unsecured noics and Joans payable § 90496 § S028 4.08% 5 BESTO 5 88083 4.19%
Secwred noles and loans payable 37,765 AT 4.53% 14,387 34,337 464
Tozal debt § 128,361 . 5:127.743 4.21% $132963 $12240 4.31%

The carrying vilue of our debt inelides imamaortized premiums, discouns, debl issiance costs and the efects of
foreign curmency manslation adjusiments. Debt issuance costs ane deferred and mmortized 1o mierest expense on an
eifective vield basiz over the contractual ierm of the deb.

Weighted average contraciual mleresl rales are calculated based on ongimal notional or par value befiore
considermon of premimm or discount and approximale the elective imerest rutes, Debi s callable an par valug,

Schoduled maturities of our debt portfiolio are summanzed below. Aciual repavment of secured debt will vary bascd
on the repayvmeni activily on the relaied pledged asseis,

Future

Years ending March 31, debi matuniies
2026 5 57,794
2027 27,839
2028 16,8389
2029 G447
P4 8952
Thereafier ! 13900
Unameortized premiums, discounts and debd issuance costs (516)
Totul dibi 5 127745

b Unsexured and secured notes and loans paynble matune on various dates through fiscal 204%.

Llpsecrired Nodes and Louns Payable

Chur unsecured notes and loans payable consist of commercial paper and fixed and variable rie debl. Short-tenm
fumding needs are met through the ssumee of commeercial paper inthe US. Amounts outstandiig under our
commercial paper programs were 5173 billion and 5172 billion as of Marcl 31, 2025 and 2024, respeciively.

Upon issuance of Nixed rale debr, we generally elect o enter imo pay-leat swaps to conven lixed mie payments on
debi to floating rate payments, Cerain unsceured noles and loans payable are denominated in various forcign
currencies. The debi is iranslated inio U.S. dodlars using ihe applicable exchange raie ai the iransaction date and
retrimsladed at cach balance sheet date using the exchange rate in cffect ot that date. Concwrrend with the ssuance of
these lofeign curfency unsecured notes and loans payable, we enler Ml cuffency swaps in (he saine notioinal amoint
to eomvert non-11 %, cummency paymenis (o LS. dollar denominated paymenis. Gains and losses related o foreign
currency transactions are incheded in Interest expense in our Consolidoed Statements of [ncome.

Ceriain of our unsecured noies and lomns payable contain covenanis and conditions cusiomary in transactions of this
e, ineluding negative pledge provisionms, cress-defimll provisions and lmilatons on certain conselidations,
miergers and sales ol assets. 'We are cumrently in compliance with these covenants and conditions.
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Mute T — n il

Secnred Notes and Logans Fu_'pn'Hr

Chur secured notes and loans payable are denominated in U5, dollars and consist of both fixed and varinble rte debr.
Secwred potes and loans payable are issued using on-balance sheel secuniiieation rusis, as furher discussed in Note
% — Vanable Interest Entitics. These notes are repayable only fromn collections on the underlyving securitized retail
finance receivables and the beneficial ineresis i invesiments in operating leases and rom related credil
enhancements. Some of our secured notes are backed by 2 revolving poal of fmance receivables and cash collateral,
with the ability 1o repay the motes in full after the revolving period ends, afier which an amoniznion period begins,

Credit Facilities amd Letters of Credit

For additiomal lguidity purposes, we ouintinn credi Gcilities, which may be used For genenl corposale purposes, as
described below:

Atd-Dhay Crealtt Agreement, Theee-Year Credlt Agreement and Five-Year Credi Agreemem

TMCC, Tovola Credit de Puerto Rico Corp. (“TCPR™), o whelly-ownied subsidiary, and other Tovoln alfiliates are
party (o a 55,0 billion 364-day syndicated bank credin fcility, a 85,0 billion three-vear syndicated bank credin
facility, and a $5.0 billion five-vear syndicated bank credil facality, expiring m fiscal vears ending March 31, 2026,
2028, and 2030, respectively.

The ability 1o make driaws s subjest to covenants and conditions customary m iransactions of this pature, including
negative pladee provisions, cross-defanll provisions snd limiations on cenain consolidations, mergers and sales of
assets. These agreements were ned draown npon and had no outstasding balances as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,
We are currently in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the credit agreemenis described above,

Committes! Revedving Assel-backed Foeiliy

We are party o a 364-day revolving securitization facility with cennin bank-sponsored asset-backed conduits and
other financial institutions expining in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2026, Under the serms and subject 1o the
conditions of this facility, the commitiod lenders under the facility have commiticd to make advanees wp Lo a Facility
limit of $3.5 ballien backed by eligible retall finonce receivibles rransierred by us to o special-purpose entity acling
as borower, We wtilized 55 8 billion and $3.4 billion of this fecility as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Chher Drseenred Credit Agroements

TMOCC is panty 1o additional unsccured credit facilities with various banks, As of March 31, 2025, TMOC had
commitied bank eredit Facilinies tonling $4.1 billion, of which 32.2 ballion and $1.9 billion mature in fs¢al vears
cmding March 31, 2026 and 2028, respectively.

These credn agreemens contmn covenants and conditions custemary in iransactions of s notare, inchiding
negative pledee provisions, cross-default provisions and limitations on centain consolidations, mergers and sales of
agsets, These cradin ficilitees were ned drawn upon and had no outstanding balances as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,
Wi are currently in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the credit ngrecments described above,

TMIOC is party 10 a $5.0 billion thiee-vear revolving eredil Geality with Tovota Mator Sales, S AL, Ine, (“TMS"),
expiring in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2028, This credit facility was not drawn upon and hid no outstanding
balance as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,

From i o time, we may borrow froan affilisies based upon a number of business faciors such as funds
wvalability, cash Mow miming, selative cost of huwks, and market access capabibines. Anwanls bomowed from
alfiliates are recorded i Other linbilities on cur Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Mote B — Variahle 1 E

A VIE is i citity that edther (1) bos insulMicicinl equily 1o permit the endity 1o fanee i1s setivities withoul additional
subordinated financinl support or (i1) has equity investors who lack the charactenistics of a controlling financial
intergst, The primary bencliciary of a VIE iz the gany with both the power to direet the activities of the VIE that
miost significamly impact the VIE"s economic performance and the obligation 1o absorb the losses or the right 1o
receive benelits that could potentially be sigmificant 1o the VIE

T n5s5css whether we have the power to direct the activities of 2 VIE that most significantly mnpact its economic
perfonmance, we consider all e facs and circumstances including our role in esablishing the VIE and our ongoing
rights and responsibilitics. This assessment includes identifring the activities that most significantly impaci the
VIE's econcanic performance and identfying which pany, i7" any, has power over those activities. In general, the
party thai makes the most significant decisions afTecting the VIE is determined to have the power to direct the
activitics of the VIE, To assess whether we have the obligation to absorl the losses or the nght fo receive benefits
that could potentinlly be significant to the VIE, we consider all of our economic mierests, including debt md equity
inlerests, servicing nighis and foe arrangements, aind oy other visriable imerests in the VIE. 10 we detenmine that we
are the party with the power to make the most significam degisions affecting the VIE, and we have an obligation 1o
ab&w;bElhu bosses or the right 1o receive benefits thal coubd poieniially be significant 1o the VIE, ten we consolidae
the VIE.

We porform ongoing reassessments, wsually quanerly, of whether we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE, The
reqnssessmen| process considars whether we have aequired or divesied the power to direct the most significant
activitics ol ihe VIE through clanges in goveming documens or other circumstances. We also reconsider whethgr
enlities previously determined not o be V1Es have become VIES, based on new evemts, and therefone could be
subject 1o the VIE consolidation Tmumework.

Consofidated Fariable Interest Entitics

We use one or more special purpose entitics that are considered VIES to issuc assei-backed securities 1o third-pany
baiik-sponsored nssel-backed securitization velieles omd 1o mvestors m secunithbeation ransactions. The securilics
issued by these VIEs are backed by the cash Mows related 1o retail finance receivables and beneficial interests in
investments in operating leases (“Securitized Assets™). W hold vanable interests in the VIE: that could potewtially
be significant to the VIEs, We deiermined that we are the primary beneficiary of the scouritization trusts bocause (i)
our servichg responsibilities for the Secunized Assels grve us the power 1o dinecl e activities that most
significanily impact the performance of the VIEs, and (ii) our variable interesis in the VIEs give us the obligation o
abeorb losses and the right 1 roceive residual retums (iat could potentially be significam.

The following tables show the assets and linhilities related 1o our VIE securitizntion transactions that are incloded on
our Congolidived Balinee Sheets:

March 31, 2025

VIE Assets VIE Liahilities
Restncned
cash and Mei
cash securiliaed Onher Cher
equivalents asscls AssCls Dbt liabilitics
Rewml Mmnce receivables 5 1853 § 33958 5 152 5 448 5 [ rd
Invesiments m operuting leascs (37 10,722 15 7264 10
Todal 5 2,490 5 4-1.6;![! 5 167 5 ITTIT 3 T;
Murch 31, 2024
VIE Assets VIE Lighilitics
Restricied
cash and Met
cash securited Other Oither
equivalems BESLEE AEELLS bt liabilities
Retail fimance receivables 1 1559 % 130 s 125 § 27351 S LT
Investments i aperating leases 692 10,374 17 6.6 12
Total % 2251 % 41404 5 142 £ 34337 8 L]
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Mote B — Variahle 1 Entit niin

Restricted cash and cash equivalems, shown i the preceding tables represent collectons from the underlying Met
securitized assets and certain reserve depasits held by TMOC for the VIEs and is included as pan of Resiricted cash
and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balinee Sheets, Net securitived asse1s shown in the preceding tables are
presented net of deferred fees and costs, deferred income, accumulated depreciztion, and allowance for credit losses,
Other assets represent accrued imerests related 1o securitized retnil fimance receivables and used wehicles held-fors
sale thit were repossessad by or refumed 10 TMOC for the benefit of the VIEs. The related debt ol these
consalidmed VIES is prescnied net of 51,6 billion of securities retained by TMCC at March 31, 2025 awd 2024,
respectively. Other liabilitics represent aocrsed interest on the debt of the consolidated VIEs,

The asszis of the YIEs and the resricted cash and cash equivalenis held by TMOC serve as the sole source of
repaymend for the assci-backed securitees issucd by these entitics.  Investors in the notes issued by the VIEs do not
have recourse bo us o our other assels, with the exception of customary representation and warramy repurchase
prosasions and indemnitics.

As the primary beneliciary of these entitics, we are exposed o credil, resichual vithoe, interest mie, and prepayment
risk from the Securitized Assets in the VIEs. However. our exposure 1o these risks did not change as a resuli of the
transfer of the asseis 1o the VIES. We may also be exposed 1o interest rate risk anising from the secured notes issued
by the VIEs.

In addition, we eniered inio interes rate swaps with certain special purpose entitics that issue variable rmie deb
Under the serms ol these swips, the special purpose entitics are ohligited o pay TMOC a fixed mate of inferest on
cerain paymem dates in exchange for receiving & Noating mie of imieresi on notional amowunis equal o ihe
outsianding balance of the secured debd. This amungement enables the specinl purpose entities to mitigae the
inlencst raie risk inlenent in issuing variable mie debi that is secured by lxed rate Securitized Asscis.

The transfers of the Securinzed Asscis 1o the special purpose aities in our secunitizations are considered 1o be sales
fior legal purposes. However, the Securnitized Assets and the relatcd debd remain on our Consolidated Balamee
Shects. We recognice fimincing revenug ai the Seawrilized Assats i mileres! expense o the secured debt issued
by the specinl purpose entitics. We also maintain an allowance for credit lesses on the securitized retail inance
receivables weing o methodoloygy consistent with that used for our non-securitized assel portfolio. The interest rute
swaps between TMOC and the special purpose entitics are considered intercompany transactions and therefore are
ehmirated i our consoldated Gnancial stements.

Amounts due from non-consolidaied vanable interest entitics at March 11, 2025 and 2024, and revenues eamed from
non=consolidated variable interest emitics during Ascal 2025, 2024, mwd 2023 were 101 significant.
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Maode T — Com s and Con

Connmituents amd (ruaraniees

Wi have eniered imo certain commitments and guarantecs for which the maximum unfunded amounts ane
sumnarized n the able below:

March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

Commitments;

Credit facilities commimments with dealers 5 IM3 8 3244

Conmmitreenis under operating lease mercements 2% 106
Total commitmenis 3871 3350

Guaramees of afTiliate pollution contro] and solid waste disposal bonds = o _dm
Total commitments and guaraniccs 5 3971 5 3,450

Whelesale financing is noi considered o be a contrachial commiiment as the amangensenis are noi binding

arrangemens wider which TMOC is required 10 perform,

Contmitutents

We provide fixed and variable rae working copital loans, revelving lines of credit, and real estae Ninancing 1o
dealers and varions madie-frunchise organizations refemred to as dealer groups for facilities construciion and
refusbishment, working capital requiremenis, real estate purchases, basiness aoquisitions and other general business
purposes, These loans are typically secured with liens on real estne, vehocle inventory, andior giher dealership
assets, as approprinle, and may be guarmiced by individual or comporse guaranises of affilated dealers, dealer
grougs, of dealer principals, Although the loans are typically collateralized or gunranteed, the value of the
underbying colluternl or guanmiees may ned be sufficien 1o cover our exposure under such agreements. Our pricing
reflects murket conditions, the competitive environment, the level of support dealers provide our retail, lease and
voluntiry protection business and the creditwonthiness of each dealer, Amounts drmwn wnder these Bacilities are
reviewed for collectability on a quarterly basis, in conpumction with our evaluation of the allowance for credit losses.
Lk sidelitioon 1o the toeal comnitments and guarminees in the preceding tible, we have aleo exiended eredil Bicilities 1o
afiliates as described in Nole |2 — Related Party Tmnsiclions.

Lease Compritments

Chur operting lease portfodio consists of real estaie leases. Total operating lease expense, including payments to
alfiliates. was S30 million for scal 2025, 326 millkon for Oscil 2024, and 532 million for fscal 2003, We lavea
lease agrecmend through August 2032 with TMNA for our headquariers facility in Plano, Texas, Commitments
under opernting lease sgreements in the preceding table include S54 million and 562 million for facilities leases with
affiliates at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Lease terms may contain rencwal and extension options or carly tenmination features, Generally, these options do
not impact the keaze term because TMOC is not reasonably certaim it it will exercise the options. These lexse
agrecments do nol impese restrictions on owr ability 1o pay dividends, engage in debt or equity financing
trangactions or enter ino further lease agreaments, nor do they have residual valoe guarmniees. 'We exclude from our
Consolidaied Balance Sheets leases with o tierm equial so one year or less and do not separvie non-lease componenis
from our real estate leases

Operming lease liabilivics and right-of-use CROLU™) assets are recogmized & the lease commencement dane based on
the present value ef the fumure mininom lease payments over the lease term, As the interest rate implicit in the lease
condract i typically nol readily determinable, we utilize our incremenial borrowing rate af the lease commencement
date for the duration of the lease term. As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, operming lease liabilites and ROU asseis
related to our operating lease agreements for which we arc the lessee were not significant.
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Maote ¥ — Commitments and C i in|

Conaraniees aivd Other Contingencies

TMOC has guaranteed bond ebligations tedaling %106 million in principal that were issued by Puinam County, West
Virginaa and Gibson County, Indiana 1o fimance the construction of pollution control facilities a1 manufciunng
planis of ceriain TMOCC affiliates. The bonds miature i the following fscal vears ending March 31: 2028- 8240
million; 2025 - S50 million; 2050 - SHmillion; 2031 = S 10 million; and 2032 - 510 million, TMOC would be
requited (o perform under the guarantees m the event of non-payment on the bands and ather related obligntions.
TMOC ks emtitked 10 relmbursement by the applicable afilies for any amounts pid. TMOC receives i nominal
anmual fee for guarnnicemge such payments. TWMOC has not been required to perform under any of these affiliate
bond gusranices as of March 31, 2025 and 2024,

Tadewnification

In the ordinary course of busingss, we cnter inig agrecments conaining indemnification provisions standard in the
industry reloted to several tvpes of tmnsuctions, including, but not limited to, debi funding, derivatives,
securitiziion iransactions, and our vendor, supplier and service agreements. Performance under these indemnitics
would penerally occur upon a breach of the representations, wasrantics, covenunts or other commitments madc or
given in the agreement, or as a resuli of a third-pany elaim. In addition, we have agreed in ceriain debi and
dervative issuances, and subgect 1o cenlain exceplions, o gross-up payments due wo third parties in (e event that
withhobding tax is inposed oa such payments, [ sddinion, cermin oF oqr fiding Aangements may require s w
iy benders for increased costs due to cerlaim changes in livws or regulations. Doe to the difficulty in predicting
cvents which could cawse a breach of the indemnification provisions or (Figger & gross-up ar other pavmen
obligatkon, we ane nol able 1o estinaie our maxinnm exposure 10 future paymients Uit could result from claims
mde under such provisions. 'We hove nod made any material payments in the past as a resull of these provisions,
and a2 of March 31, 2025, we determined that 1t is not probable that we will be required to make amy material
payments in the future, As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, no amounts have been recorded under these

inderni fication prowvishais,

Litfgation amd Governmental Proceedings

Various legal actions, povemmental proceedings and eiher claims are pending or may be instiuied or assenied in ihe
Tuture against us with respect 1o matters arising in the ordinary course of business. Certain of these actions are or
puirpt 1o b class actioi sulls, secking sireable dainapes andior chiiges in our butaness operatiis, policies aid
practices, Cenaim of these actions are similar 10 suits that have been filed against other financial institutions and
captive fance companics. In addition, we are subject 1o governnsentil and regulmory examigations, infonation-
pmhering requesis, and investigations from e o tme of the state and federal levels, It is inherently difficuli 1o
predict the course of such legal sctions and govermmenial inguirics.

We perform periodic reviews of pending clnings and actions to determine the probability of adverse verdicts and
resulting amounts of Hability, 'We establish acoruals for legal clinms when payments assosiated with the cliims
become probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. When we are able, we also determing estimptes of
reasonable possibility of loss or range of loss, whether in excess of any relaied scerued liability or where there 5 no
accnscd liahility. Given the inherent uncerininty assocized with legal matters, tse actual cosis of resolving legal
clabms and associmed cosis of defense may be substntkilly higher or lower than ihe amounis for which acenals
hiwve boen established. Based on available mformatdion and established aceruals, we do not believe it is reasomably
protabbe that the resilts of these proceadings, eithier individually or in ihe aggregate, will have a matgrial adverse
effect on our consolidated financial condition or resulis of operations.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions )

Mate 10— 'r ns

We are a participating cimployer in certamn retirement and post-relisement medicnl eare, life insurance, and ather
benefits sponsored by TMMNA. an affiliate. Costs of cach plan are generally allocated to TWMOC based on relmive
benefit costs associated with purticipating or ¢ligible emplovees w TMOC a8 companed 1o the plan as a whole,

Defined Renefit Plan

Prior 1o January 1, 2005, our emplovees were genesally eligible 1o panticipate in the Toyola Motor Sales, US.A,
Inc. Pension Plan (the “Pension Plan™) commencimg on the first day of the month following hire and were vested
after 5 vears of continuous emglovinent. Effective January 1, 2015, the Penston Plan was closed 1o employees first
ciployed or reemployed on or afier such date.

Beneflits payvable under tiis mon-coninbutory delined benelil pension plm are basesd, geonerally, wpon ihe cmployees’
vears of credited service (up to a maximam of 2% years), the highest sverage annual compensation {as defined in the
plan) for any 60 consecutive month peniod gut of the lagt 120 months of employment {the “Applicable Years™), and
onc=hulf of eligible bonus/gilt payments for the Applicoble Yeurs (recaleuisted o determine the annual averge of
such amount), reduced by o percentage ol ihe estimated amount of social security benefits,

Costz allocated 10 TMCC for our enployees m the Pension Plan and ceram other non-gualified plans were not
significant for fiscal 2025, 2024, and 2023,

Dafimed Contribation Plan

Employecs meeting ceruin eligbility requirensents, as defined in the plan dociments, may participate in the Toyota
Motor North America, Inc. Retirement Savings Plane. Under this plan, chgible employees may elect 1o contribute
Between | percent and 30 percent of their eligible pre-rax compensaion, subject to federal tax megulation limis, We
mich 66.67 percem of the first 6 percent thal a participant comribanes, up 1o 4 pereent of eligible compensatbon,
Pariicipanis arc always 100% vested in their contributions w the Retirement Savings Flan, Employer coniribalions.
vesl on a d-year graded schedule at 25 percent per year. Generally, comributions are funded through bi-weekly
payments to the plan’s adminstrator. Cenain employecs hired on or after Fanuary 1, 201 5 may be cligible 1o receive
it pcdditional Company conlributiai 1o the plan calculated bazed on leir age aid compensation.

TMCC employer contributions io the savings plan were not significant for fiscal 2023, 2024, and 2023,

(hifer Post-Retirement Benefie Plans

Employecs are generally eligible to participate in other post-retirement benefits sponsored by TMNA which provides
certuin medscal care and hife inswrance benelis o eligible retired emplovess. Generally, i order 10 be eligible lor
these benefits, the employee musi be age 55 or older with 10 or more years of service,

Olher post-retirement bengfil cosis altocated wo TMOC were not significant for fiscal 2025, 2024, and 2023,

R

198/314



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
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Mote 11— Income Taves

We sz the mael and lability meled of accounting for income toxes under which deferred mx asseis and liabilies
are adjusted to reflect changes in tax rotes and bws in the period such changes are enacted resulting in adjustments
1o the current fiscal vear's provision for incoms 1axes,

TMCC files o consolidated federal income tax retum with TFS1C and its subsidiaries. Curment and deferred federal
income axes are allocwed 10 TMOC as il it were a separaie taxpayer, TMOC s net operating kosses and fax credits
are utilized when those lnsses and credits are used by TFSIC and its subsidianes imcluding TMOC, in the
consalidined federal income g reirn, TMOC files cither separme or consalidamed 'combingd st income tx
retums with TMNA, TFSIC, or subsidiarics of TMCC. State income tax expense is generally recognised as il
TMOC amd iis subsidiaries filed thelr wx retums on a samd-alone basls. In those staies where TMOC and lis
subsidiarics join in the filing of consolidated or combined income tax returns, TMOC and its subsidiarics arc
allocaied ihekr share of the iodal income tax expense based on combined allocation/apportionmeni factors and
separnte company incoms or loss. Buased on the Federn] and state tox sharimg agreements, TFSIC and TMCC and nis
subsidiarics pay for their share of the income tax expense and are reimbursed for the benefit of sy of their tax losses
and credits utilized in the federal and state income 1ax retums.

The provision for income taxes consisied of the following:

Years ended March 31,

HI2% 20124 2023
Current
Federal s T 8 i .- (1.559)
Staie 1% 14 i
Foreign =3 12 16
Tonl K4 BO5 {1 Hdd)
Delerred
Federal (258) (376) 2,100
Siale 47 (7% 78
Foreign 3 3] (5
Totl {303 {451) 2173
Provision for income Lixes 5 5ns M 5 330

A reconciliation between the ULS: federal statutory tax mate and the effective tx rae is as follows:

Years ended March 31,

20285 2024 2023
Provision for income taxes ol LS, federal statulory Lax mke 210ms 21.0% 20.0%
State and local taxes (net of federal ax benefit A6%% 4% 4.2%
Changes in unrecognized tax benefils 0.4% 0.5% 1.3%
Effeet of statc tax law changes 0.1% (1.27% 0.3)%
State tax refund nccrual (net of federal tax benefin) {0.5% (063 {06)%
Other, net ! (0,51% 0,1% (0,47
Effective tax rale 23.4% 2370 5. 7%

1 The ameniants in Other, nel melode inx benefits from loreign dax creduls o reseanch and development eredits [or fiseal 2025,
2024, and JEES, and ax benefits from plug-in vehicle credits and qualified commercial elenn vehicle eredats for fiscal 2023,

K
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars in millions)

Mote 11— 1n T. ontin

Our net delerred imcome tax liabiliny consisted of the following deferred 1ax Dabilines and asseis:

March 31,
2% 024

Linbilities:

Lease iransactions 5 3181 % 3493

Voluntary protectvon dealer commissions 455 439

State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 237 271

Onher 1 73
Deferred tax linbilities 5 4004 § 4.276
Asscis:

Provision for credit and residual value losses 503 517

Deeferred costs and fees 235 210

Muark-to-muarket of investments in muarketable securitics and derivatives 171 186

Lease obligations EH) 19

Accrued expenses 26 40

et operating loss and tax credit carmyforwards 15 14

Obier 43 19
Deferred tax nssels 1,031 1,005

Valuation allowance - (1}
Mel delferred tax assets 5 1,031 & i
Mgl deferred imncome tax labiliy ! 5 Z5T0S 3272

' Dalamee inclwles deferred tax assets of $15 mulbion and 518 mallion a1 March 31, 2025 and 2024, respesctively, atiribaitable 10
unrealized ksces incluided m necumulnled sther comprehemsive less. The chunge in this balonee i not meluded i the 1aial
defermed tux expense

We have no deferred ux assets related 1o cumulbative federnl net operating loss carry forwards as of March 31, 2025
and 2024, We hive deferned tax assets related 1o camulative stie net operating loss carry forwards of 515 million
and 513 million at March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Statc net operating loss carryforwards will expire
beginning in fiscal 2027,

Wi have no deferred tnx assets related 1o federal tax credits for vehicles or rescarch and develoganent s of March
30, 2025 and 2034, The deferred tax assets related o federal tax credit for foreign tx were ot significant as of
March 30, 2025 ad 2024, respectively,

The valuation allowance on deferred tix assets was not significant as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, The
determination of the valuation allowance is based on management's estimate of future txable income during the
respective carmyforward periods. Apart from the valuation allowance, we belicve thi the remaaning deferred tax
assets will be realieed in full. The amoant of the defermed fax assers considered realizable could be reduced if
managemeni s cstimaies change,

W bave made an assertion of penaent reinyvestment of earnings froan our foreign subsidiory . as o resull, other
than the deemed repatriation fax that is provided pursuan wo the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, state and local taxes
have not been provided for unremitted camings of our foreign subsidiary. Al March 31, 2025 and 2024, these
unremiticd camings iotaled 8329 million and S320 million, respectively, Deiermination of the amount of the
delerred state and logal tax labaluy s not practicable, ad aecondingly no estimnte of the wnrecorded deferred state
and local tax liability is provided.

Although we do not fercsee any evenis causing repatriation of eamings, possible examples may include bui are not
limited to paresd company capilal meeds or exiting the business in the foreign country.

L
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MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars in millions)

Mote 11— 1n T. ontin

W had an income 1ax payable of 511 millvon and an incoane ax receivable of 326 mallien Tor our share of the
income tax in those states where we filed consolidsied or combined retums with TMNA and its subsidiarics a1
Mlarch 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Additionally, our federad and state ineome tax payable or receivable from
TMOC aMiliated companies, including TFSIC, TFSB, and Toyeda Financial Services Securities USA Corporation,
was not signficant for both March 31, 2025 and 2004,

The guidance for the sccounting und reporting o7 INCHNE LIXES FOQUITES US [0 55055 Lok posilions m cases where the
interpretmion of the tox law may be uncertain. The changes in unrccognised s benefits are s follows:

March 31,
2025 2024 2123

Balance m beginning of the year § 52 8 43§ 2
Increases related 1o positions tken durmg the currcnl year 14 b 2
licreases recorded in current year related 1o positions taken

during prior ycars = 1l 15
Drecreases recorded inewrrend year relied o positions mken
during prior years (1) - -
Secithemenis - 3 -
Exparations due 10 lapse of statuie 2) {2) -
Balmce o end ofihe year 5 61 % 35 43

Al March 31, 2025, 2024 and 2023 approximately 363 million, $52 million and 543 million of the respective
unrecopnized tax benefits would, if recognized, luve an effect on the effective tax ne. During fiscal 2025, 511
mikllion ol ihe net nerease by unrecognised tax benefiis lad an effect on the efective i rie. We do nol have any
positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly
increase or decrease within 12 months,

We accrue interest, if applicable, related 10 uncerinin mcome ax positions i interest expense. Stmuiory penaltes, iF
applicable, accrued with respect W unceriain income (ax positions are recogniacd as an additien to the income tax
liability. For each of fiscal 2025, 2024, and 2023, aceried interest was not significant and no penaliies were
accrued.

I Agust 2022, the InDation Beduction Act (“the Act”™) was sigoued into law, The Act modilies climate and clean
encrgy corpenic tx provisions, including amendmenis io the federal tax eredii for plug-in vehicles available under
the previous 1ax Lvw as well as enactiment of the qualified commercial clean vehicle credit. We consider the
qualified commercial clean vehicle credii w consiitute an investmeni iax credii under Accouniing Standards
Codilication 740 frcome Taves. In (e fowrth cuartes of Ascal 2024, we changed our accounting policy for
investment tax credits from the Nosw-ilrough method 1o the deferral method. The Act also includes o 15 percent
corparale allermaive miminum tex based on modi fied Roancial statement met incoms, applying 10 lax years
beginning after December 31, 2022, which was applicable beginning fiscal 2024, We do not expect o pay corporate
alvermative mindmum wx in addition fo our regular federal income tax in fiscal 2025,

Tawe-redated Cansingencies
As of March 31, 2025, we renmnned under IRS exanmbiation for fscal 2018 through fseal 2025,
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Thie tables below show the Mnarcial statement line nems and mmouns inclided in o Consolidated Siements ol
Income and on our Conselidnied Balance Shects under various related party agroeements or relationships:

Mol financing revenues:
Manufhciurer's subvention and otber revenues
Diepreciution on operating leascs

Interest expense:
Credin support foes, nterest and other expenscs

Viduntary protection contract revenues
and insurance earned premivms:
Voluntary prolectson contract revenues
and insurnnee carmned premiums

Investment and other income, net;
listerest and oilicr incoime

Expenses:
Operating and administrative

ELETOH
Investments in marketable securitics

Commercial paper

Finance receivaliles, net
Accounts receivable
Deferred retil subvention income

Investments in operating leases, net
Invesiments in operaiing leases, net
Deferred leass subvention income

Other assets
Mies receivable
Oibier receivables, nel

Liabilitics:
Other linbilitics
Uneamed volintiry prolsciion conlfac] revenies
and insurnce carned premiums
Onher payables, net
Noies payable

03

Years cnded Murch 31,

2024 2023
5 975 985 8 1,243
5 b (68) & [
5 114 s s 6
5 1%1 152 % 136
L 1 62 $ 35
5 108 E I 107
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
b3 15§ -
5 7308 44
s (L1 S (953)
5 (1 % (=20
5 (500 S (323)
5 1651 8 1.724
£ L O ®ih
5 446 5 433
g Ril & 771
s 15 % B
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MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TMOC receives subverion payvments from TMNA which result in o gross manthly subvention receivable, Asof
March 31, 2025 and 2024, the subvention receivable from TMNA was $106 million and 3111 million, respectively.
We have a masier nefting agreement with TMMNA which allows us 1o net senle paymems foe shared services and
subvention transactions. Under this agrecment, as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, we had a net amount
payable to TMNA which is recorded in Other pavables, net in Other liabalines,

Cur Board of Directors declared and poid eash dividends of approximatcly 51.5 billion and $97% million pavable 1o
TFSIC during fiscal 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Financing Support Arrangenents with Affilioes

TMCOC is party to a credit suppon agreement with TFSC (the *TMOC Credin Support Agreemem™). The TMOC
Credin Suppon Agreemient requires TFSC 1o maintain corain ownership, mel worth maintenance, and deby service
provasions with respect to TMCC, bul 15 nod a guaraniee by TFSC ol any securitics or obligations of TMCC. In
conjunction with this credit suppon agreement, TMOC has agreed 1o pay TFSC a semi-annual fee based on a fixed
rate applied to the weighted average outstanding amount of securitics entitled 10 credil suppori.

TCPR iz ihe beneliciary of a credit suppon agreemeni with TESC conaining provisions similar io the TMCC Credii
Support Agreement described above.

In addition, TMOC receives suppart rom and provides financing suppon (o TFSC and other afTiliates i the form of
proamissory noles wnd virios loan and credil Gscility agreemems. As of March 31, 2025 and 2024, 1otal financing
suppon available from alMiliates wialed approximarcly 5.3 billion and $8.4 billion. respectively, These amouns
include o 55.0 billion threc-vear revalving credit fcility with TMS expiring in the fgeal vear ending March 31,
2028, Asof March 31, 2025 and 2024, toial linancing suppon available 1o aMilinies iotaled approximaicly $10.1
ballion and 10.2 billion, respectively.  These amounts inelude Nnancing support available 1o Tovota Finance
Corporation, which was increased 1o Y300 billion (approximately 52,0 billion as of March 31, 2025) in December
2023, The amounts outstanding under these apreements are recorded i Other assets and Other liabilines on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets an March 31, 2025 and 2024,

{bher Financing Support Provided to Affiliates

TMOC provides wholesale financing, real estate and working capital loans to certain dealerships that were
consalidaed by another alfilate under the accountmg gusdince for vanable interest entites. TWMOC also pavs Ukese
dealers origination fees. These costs represent direct costs incurmed in connection with the acquisition of retail and
lease contracts, inchuding subvention awd other cash inoeniive progries.

TMOC has guaranieed the payments of principal and interest with respect 1o the bonds of manafiwiuring fcilities of
ceriln affilisies, The naiere, business purpose. and amowns of these puaraniees ane described in Mol ¥ -
Commitments and Contingencics.

TMOC und TFSIE are partics o a masier paricipation agreensent pursuant to which TMCC agreed 10 purchase no
more than $60 million per year of residential mengage loans onginated by TFSE that meet specified credit
underwrinng guidelings. Al March 31, 2025 and 2024, loan participation outstnding thm had been purchased by
TMCOC under this agreensent were not significant.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions)

Mote 12 — Relajed Pariy Transaciions {Continued)

Khared Service Arrangewents with Affilivies
TMOC is subject to the following shared service agrecmenis:

TMCC incurs cosis under various shared service agreemenis with TMNA and other affiliates. Services
provided by aflilintes under the shared service agreements inchede certain eechnological and
administriive senvices, such as information systems suppont, Bicilities, surance coverige, linmin
resources and other corporate services, TMOC may also participits and meur coss in shared marketing
cilons with TMNA.

TMOC provides various services 1o 15 subsidiaries and afliliates, including certain sdministralive and
corporale services, operational support. mformation sysicms support, facilitics. treasury, and vendor
MATAEEMEI SErvices,

TMCC provides various services 1o TFSB, including marketing, adminisirative, systems, and
operational suppon i exchange for TFSB making aviilable cerinin financial products and services (o
TMOC s customers and dealers meeting TFSB's credin standards. TMOC 15 paniy 1o a master neiiing
agreement with TFSB, which allows TMOC 1o net seitle payments for shared services betwoen TMCC
i TFSH.

TMOC is a party to expense reanbursement agreements wiih TFSB and TFSC related to costs imcurmed
by TMOC or these affiliates on behalf of the other party in connection with TMOC s provision of
services 1o these affiliates or the provision by these afMiliaes of cemaln financial prodicts and services 1o
our cusiomers and dealers in suppon of TMOC s cusiomer lovalty siratcey and programs, and gther
biraind aiid sales supporL

TMOC neceives suppon from and provides suppon 1o TFSC and ether affiliates in the fonm of
promissory motes ad varbos loan and eredin Gcility agreements, including a revolving credin Rciliy
with TMS, which may be used for general corporate purpascs.

TMOC and TFSB are partics to servicing agreemenis wherein TMOC will subservice certain loans
originaied by TFSB, including the retail and lease comracts originated under the MFS Agreemen by
TFSE as described in Mol | - Basis of Presentation and Sigmificant Accounting Policies. Compensation
Tor services provided under the servicing agreements ane commensurate with marker rates and presemied
in lnvestient and other income, net in the Consolidated Income Statements.

204/314



Mote 12—

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
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P T it “omting

Ehperalivnal Supgpirt Arrasigements with Affiliates

TMOC and TCPR provide varous whelesale financing o dealers, which result in us having payables 1o
TMNA and Tovotn de Puerio Rico Corp,

TMCC is party to a lease agreemeitt with TMNA for our headquaners facility in Plano, Texas, expining
in 2032, and our Dallas Data Center expiring in 2026, The lease commitments ang described in Mote 9 -
[EELIELE] i OLAESNCics.

Subvention receivable represams amounts due from TMMA and other alfiliaies in support of retall and
tease subvention and other cash incentive programs offered by TMCOC, Deferred subvention income
represents the unesraed porion of snoudils receved lrom Uiese transactois, and matiileturers”
subvention and ather revemises primanly represent the camed porlion of such amounts.

Invesiment m operating leases mcloudes contractunl residual value support received from afTilintes which
are recognized as an offsel o depreciation expense over the life of the contrael.

TMOC ks a participating employver in certain retiremnen, post-retirement medical care and life mswronce
benefits sponsored by TMNA. Refer 1o Nowe 10 - Pension gnd Other Beacih Plans for addition:

information.

TMOC is pany to agrecmends with TMMNA and other aflilinges relating o the wam member vehicle
beielit projamn, whidch allows weam ineiibers 1o lease Tovola and Lexus velilgles odi tenimns exclusive 1o
the benefii program. TMWMMA scrves as the chiel administrator of the program. TMOC acquires and
services team mensber leases afler ongination. A portion of the vehiches used for the team nember
vehicle bencfit program are acguired from TMNA. TMCC receives a per vehicle contribution from
participating ofiliates 1o assist with the costs of its comribution 1o the benelit program, and TMCC pavs
a per vehicle paricipation foe 1o TMMNA 1o participate in the benelil program.

Affiliate veluntary protection controct revenues and mswrance camed preminms primarily represent
revenues from TMIS for covernge and related administirative services provided to TMNA and other
affiliates. This includes contractual indemmity coverage for limited warrantics on certified Toyota and
Lexus pre=owned vehicles and reluted admamstrative senvices for TMNA'S certified pre-owned vehicle
program, TMIS also provides umbrella liability insurance 1o TMNA and other afiiliaics covering
certain doblar valee layers of nisk above various primary or self<insured retentions. On all layers in
which TMIS provides coverage, 9% perceni of the risk is ceded to n third-party reinsurer for palicy vears
prior w0 Oetober 1, 2024, For e policy vear beginnmg Oclober 1, 2024, on all lavers i which TMIS
provides coverage, 95 percent of the risk is ceded 1o a third-party reinsurer.

My
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars in millions)

Maote 13— Fair V Measuremen

Fanr valise is defiaved as the price that would be reecived to sell an asset of pald 1o ransler o liability in am orderly
transaction boween morket panicipiams ai the mexsuremendt date. In order 1o determing the Gir value of our assets
e Diabilinies, we vse quoted prices Tor identical or similar instromems, otherwise we uliliee valuation models with
observable or calculated inpuis. The use of observable quotes for identical or similar nstruments smd the use of
unobservable imputs is reflected in the fir value hierarchy assessment disclosed m the tabbes within 1lns Note as
Level 1, 2 and 3 defined below. The availshility of abservable imputs can vary based upon the financial instrament
and other factors, such as instrument tvpe, marked Hauidity and other specific charactenistics partbcular wo the
Minancial instrument. To the exient that a valuation is based on models or inputs that are less observable or
unobservable in the maker, the determination of fair value requires additional judgment by management, We usg
prices and inpuls that are current as of the measurement date, including during periods of market disruption. In
periods of market disrupticn, (he availability of prices and inpuls nay be reduced for cenyin linancial insiraments,
Thes condition coubd result in o financial mstrument being reclassified from Level | to Level 2 or from Level 2 to
Lewvel 3.

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusied) prices in active markets that are accessible i the measurement date for identical,
unresiricied assets or linbdlities,

Level 2: Crioled prices in active markets For similar assets and liabilities, or inpuls that are observable, ¢ither
directly or indirectly, for substangially the full 1erm of the asset or Liability,

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or o murket activity and may require sienifican pedgment
in order o deiermine ihe fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Valnation Adjusimenis

We may mike vahmtion adjustments 1o ensure that Gnancial instruments are reconded st Gir value. These
adjustments inglude amounts 1o reflect coumerparty credit quality, our own creditworthiness, as well as constraints
due to markei lliquidity or unobservable parameiers,

Reenrring Fuir Value Measurenenis
Clask and cash cquivalenis and Resteicied cash and cosh equivalenis

The farr value of cash equivalents and resineted cash equivalemts approxinuies the carrying value and these
insiruments are classified &5 Level | within the fir value hicrarchy,

Dirvestments in markelahle secuvitfes

We estimate the value of our AFS debi socunities, inchiding those for which the fyir value option was clected, using
observed wansaction prices, independent third-pany pricing valuation vendors, and imemal valumion models,

Wi may hold investments in actively traded open-end und privaie placement equuity invesiments. Where the equity
investingits prodisce o dmly it assel viilue thil ks quoted i o active market, we use tils valiie to deteniine M Gilr
vilue of the cquity investment and classify the investmend as Level | within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
of equity investments at produce o daily net assel viue that is ol quoted in an active markel i3 estimated using (he
nel asset value per share (or its cquivalent) as a practical cxpedicnt and are excluded from leveling within the fair
vilue ligmechy,

In nddition, we may hald individual secunties where valuation methodolowries and inputs to valuation models depend
on the secunty type, thus they may be classified differently wathin the leveling lieranchy. Where possible, quoled
prices in active markets for identical or similar securities are used to determine the fur value of the investment
securitics; those seeuritics are classified as Level | or 2, respectively. Where quaded prices in active markets are noi
wvailable, we use various valuation models for cach assel class that are consistent with whal muarket participants nsc.
The inpuis and assumpticns io the models are derived lrom marker observable sources including benchmark vields.
reporied [rixdes, broker/dealer quoles, issuer spreads, benchmark secuntics, bids, ofTers, and other market-related
ditg. These ivestnents are generally classifled as Level 2 within the fals value higrarchy, however, depending on
the significance of the unobservable inpuis they may alse be classificd as Level 3.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars i millions)

Mate 13— Fair V. Measu nis (Continue

Dherfvaiives

We estimaie the fair value of our derivatives using indusiry standard valuation models that require observable
murket inputs, incheding market prices, interest rates. foreign exchange ries, volatiliies, counterpany credil risk,
our own non-performance nisk and the contractual terms of the derivative instruments. We consider counterpariy
credit risk and our own non-performance risk through credin valuation adjusiments,

Far dervadives that trade m Loguid markets, madel mputs can gencrally be venified and do not require significan
mianagement jwdpment. These derivailve msinmenis age classafied as Level 2 wiihin ihe Gabr value hierarchy.

Certain other derivative transactions imde in less ligquid markets with limited pricing information. For such
derivatives, key tipuls 1o the valuaion process iclude quotes from counferpartics and cther mmarket data used o
corroborate and adjust values where approprimte. Other market data inchsdes valees obdained from o market
participant that serves as a third-parny valuation vendor, These derivative instruments are classified as Level 3
within the fair vislue hicmrchy.

Nonrecureing Fuir Valie Measuremerifs

Monrecurming Fair value measurements inclisde Level 3 net finance receivables that are ot measwred at fair value on
& recurring basis bun are subject 1o fvir value adjustimenis wiilizing the fair value of the underlying cellaeral when
there 1s evidenee of mpainment. Noarecurmng fur value iters as of March 31, 2025 and 2024 were nof significant.
Retml finance receivabdes greater than |20 davs past due are measured ot fair value based on the fuir value of the
undertying collmternl less costs 10 sell. The fair valoe of collateral 15 based on the curremt averge selling prices for
Iike vehicles a1 wholgsale used vehicle mections,
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MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Mote 13— F, / 1 [ i

Financial assers and fimancial labilities are ¢lassified in their entirety based on the lowest level of inpa et is
significant to the fuir value measurement. The following tables summarize our fimancial asseis and fnancial
Teabilitics meeasured at Gair value on a recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy exeept lor eerizin
investments thiv are measured st fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical
expedient and are excluded fromn the levelmg information provaded in the abkes below. The fur valoe amounts
presented below are imtended 1o pernil recondilistion of the fir value hicrarchy to the amoants presented on our

Consolidaed Balance Sleets.
March 31 2028
Counterparty
melling & Fais
Level | Leval2 Leved 3 enllataml valug
Investmenis m nsrkeble wourines
Anailahle-For-sale debt scouritics:
LLS, gov il enill agency oblgatons 5 T 5 1% 5 - 5 w  § T4
Forelym govérnment and agency obligations - 2 - n
Mumicapal debd secunities - H - X
Commercial paper - 13 - - [F)
Corpoinie debs securitics - A5 - 430
Mangage-backed securtics
I8, povemmemi agency - 141 - 141
Nom-apency revidential - L] 2 I
Nomragoney commo cial - 4 1 43
Auset-hacked secunitics = 63 i) = 134
Available-Eor-eale dele securivies waal T4 71 T2 1 86T
Eguity investmenia:
Fragd income mutual Nands
Fixed income mutua] fusds memsured al
et vt valie ! 1.9
Teanl petum bond flanids ™m - - - ™
Eiguity natual funds 1,147 - - - 1,147
Eaguity investmenls iotal (RUIE ] - - 144
Investmenids n masketable securibies iotal 22 77 T2 - A4 551
Derivative asets:
Interest mic swmps - £ - Ll
Forcigm camency swaps - [Er - - 132
Cousterpary neiting soid collsicrl - - - (L2 13] (44%)
Dervabive nesets ioinl - 405 - il i
Asseis at fair value 2rei2 1 26t r [E2 4] 4627
Derivative Eabilines:
Intcrest rate swiaps - i3 - (E1H]
Foreign camemey swaps - {717} - - 71T}
Countcrparmy netting ani collsieral - - - T2l 21
Lishilniies ai fzar value - [RELY] - T3 127
et assgts ab far value 5 ﬁ 5 50§ T 3 IT: % 4

! Measumred ot pet axset value and therefore excluded from beveling
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Dallars in millions)
Mote 13-F f Measu n
March 31, 2024
Counberparty
noiting & Far
Level I Level 2 Level § codlateral valug
Investmemis m marketable securibes:
Avanlable-for-sale debt sequritics:
L5, o anid ageney obhgatns k] G- 4§ - 5 - § 7
Foreign government and sgency obligntions . 12 o = 12
Mumcepal debi secuniics - T - - T
debt securitios - EEL] - - 430
Mongage-backed secunues
U5, governnuem ngency . & - - 18
N on-agency residential . T 1 11
Nosragemcy commercial - A 1 - 55
Asset-hacked securitics - B2 ] = 138
Available-for-sale debt socuntses waal 3] T [ - 16k
Egmity mvestmenis:
Fixned income mustuial fumds:
Fixed income mutual fusds mesaired ai
net msgt value 1,034
Toaal petum bond fands L] - - - EH)
I:ll'mL'_l" il iml lamls 1073 - - - I.U?_I_
Eguity imvestments inial 1,903 = = = A0y
Investments m neaskerable securitics votal 2,390 00 ] - 4,305
Derivative asasts:
Inierest rate swaps - 1149 - - 1,049
Foreign cumency swaps. . &0 - - 2
Counierparty nefting amul collatemi . - - il 'J‘_Tl (1197}
Derivative assets iodal . 1,23% - (1,097} 41
Mg b fasr valug 2,504 1L ik (1.197) 4440
Derivative laahilities:
Eneerest mase swaps - (32 - - {52)
Forcign comency swapi . (EE) - - (918)
Conumierparty neiiing and collsieral . — c T a7
Lisbilities a4 feir value e e ),
Pt assets an L valug ] LM 5 T § [ ] [EEL LEH]

b Measored of met azsed value and therefore excluded from lm-clin:g
Level 3 Fair Value Measuremenis

The Level 3 finncial assets and labiliies recorded al fakr value which are subject w recusring and nonsecwrring Gair
vitlue measurement, and the cormesponding activity and change in the fair value measurcments of these asseis and
lkabiliies, were not significant to eur Consolidaied Balance Sheeis as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, or Consolidaied
Statements of Income for the years ended March 31, 2025 and 2024,

LT}
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dollars in millions)

Maote 13— Fair V' Measurements (Contin

Financial Fiestriomrents Not Corrted af Faie Value
Finance receivables

Our finanice receivables consisl of retail loans and dealer Nnancing loans, which are comprised of wholesale, real
cstabe and working capital financing.  Retail finance receivables are primarily valeed using a securitization model
that incorporates expected cash flows. Cash Nows expecied 1o be collecied are estimated using contraciual principal
mnd interest payments adjusted for specific fctors, such as prepayments, extensions, defmll mics, loss sevenly,
credit scores, and collxieral type. The scouriiization mode] wiilkees quoted secondary markei rites if available or
cstimated market rates thal incorporiic management's best cstimate of invesior assumpiions about the porifolio. The
dealer Bnvgiing podtfolio is vilued ushig 3 discountad cash Now model. Discounl Giles are derived based on inaikel
rates for equivalent portfolio bond rtings. As these valuations wiilize unobservable iputs, our finance receivables
are classified as Level 3 within the i value hicrarchy,

Uinsecured notes and foans payvable

Unsecured notes and beans pavalle are primarily valued ising current inarket rates and credit spreads for delt with
similar mauritics. Our valusion models ulilise observable mputs such as standard industry curves; therefore, we
classify these unsecured notes and leans pavables as Level 2 within ithe fair value hierarchy, When observable
imputs are not available for all asswmptions, we estingate the fair salue using intermnal sssumptions such as volanlity
and expected credit losses. As these valuations wiilize unobservable inputs, we classify these unsccured nofes and
Ioans payable s Level 3 within the fiir valne hicrarchy.

Secured notes e loamy paveble

Fair value is estinsied based on quoted price or curment mirket rates for debt with similar manrities. As of March
50, 2025, our vilumtion models also use observable imputs, including prepayiment spoeds, interest mics and yield
curves, and credit spreads to estimate the fur value of the future cash Nows 1o be paid on these instrumenis:
therefore, our sccured notes and loans payables are classificd as Level 2 within the fair vahee hicrarchy. Prios to
Muarch 31, 2025, sur valuations used mmlemal pssummptions with unabservable iipuls, which resolled in our secured
noics and loans pavables being classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.

1]
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MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Mg 13— F I 1 nis (Conl
The following tables provide information alxal assets nd linbilities not carried al Gir value on a recirming basis ob
our Corsolidated Balance Sheets:
March 31, 2025
Carrying Total Fair
vitlue Level | Level 2 Level 3 vilue
Financaal asscis
Finance receivables
Retail loan £ ESGIR S - % - & E7910 5 E7.910
Whelesale 6,512 - - 6,538 6,538
Real estme 5,100 E . 5215 5215
Waorking capital 4,745 = = 4727 4727
Financial liabilitics
Unsecured notes mnd loans payvable 5 90028 5 = 5 891 5 = 5§ BO.196
Secired notes and loans payable ! nmnr - 37,755 - 37,755

! Fiscal 2025 secuncd mobes and loans payable amounts wiere elassafied as level 2 duie wo the avanlabiliny and use of observable
murket datn

March 31, 2004
Carrying I'stal Fair
varlue Level 1 _Level 2 Level 3 Vil
Financial asseis
Fmance receivables
Rl loan 5 ESSEn 5 - § - 5 B6STS 5 BOSTS
Wholesale 6,650 - - 6,710 6,710
Real estne 4,k . . 4,890 4,890
Working capital 4,531 = - EEEE] 4,494
Financial liabilitics
Unsecured notes and loans pavable £ ER(RY S < %0 B5133 % - & 8,133
Sccured notes and loans payable 4,337 - - 344,003 34,003

Accmsed interest related to linance reccivables i presented in Other assers on the Consolidaied Balance Shees;
however, TMCC measures ihe fur value of each class of fonance recervables using schiedubed principal and imterest
paymenis, Therefore, acerued invferesl has been included in the carrying value of cach class of Mnance receivables in
the preceding whles, long with the Mnance receivables, deferred origination coste, delerred income, and allowance
for credit lossces.

Finance recervabdes in the preceding tables exclude related party transactions whach are elassifiesd as Level 3 within
the fair value hierarchy. The preceding fables also exchide relsed party notes receivables and notes payvables
recorded in Other assets and Other liabilities on the Consolidaed Balince Sheets which are classifed as Level 3
within the fair vielue hicrarchy, Refer 1o Note 12 - Reluted Pamy Transaciions for additional information,

Iz
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MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{ Dellars in millions)

Maote 14— lnform

O repomable sepments are finance operations and volunary prolection operitions. Finonee operations iclude
retail, leasing, and dealer financing provided to authorized dealers and their customers in the LS. and Pucrio Rice.
Veduntary protection aperations are performed by TMIS and iis subsidiaries.

Our chicf operating decision maker, the President and Chiel Executive Officer, evahsaies segmeni operating resilis
through Income before income taxes, In asscssing segment results and determining the allocatsons of resources,
factors such ns operating trends, period-over-periad analytical compansons, and budget-to-actual varances are
considered

Fimancial mfomion for our reportable operiting scements, which mcludes allocmed compormie expenses, s
summiarnized as follows:

Voluntary
Fimmee proefection  Inlescompany
Lﬂl.ium- Lﬂtiﬁ'ﬂ- climmotivms l'odnl
Total mancing revemics 5 13232 % -3 - 3 13,232
Deprecistion on operating leases ENES] - - 4,134
Imerest eapense 5828 - - 5813
Bt [mancing revenues 1217ma - . 3237
WValunlary prolection contrucl revemies
sl insmranes eamed premaums - 1210 - 1210
Tevestmeni and other meome, net Bl 133 - 84
el financing and other revenies 1924 1543 - 5467
Expenses:
Provesson for credit loases TaR - - ThE
Eipernting and sdmmistrative 1,355 472 = 1,827
Voluptary prolection contract expenses and issaranee Josses . 63K - fix
Tokil expenses 2,123 [WH ] - 3253
Tecome before income taxes Lkal 423 - 224
Provesson for income xes 450 103 - 522
Ml income 5 1382 % i § - % 1,712
Tokal sxzets 5 147,141 % g7 5 {49 £ 155,204

1
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Maote 14— 1 m, ontin
Year ended March 31, 2024
Volumtary
Finamge predection Iniescompany
opembions i tions chimmuotions Tasnl
Toeal fmancing revemies 5 12144 5 - 5 - § 12,044
Depreciatso on operaling beases 4170 - - 4170
Ietetes] expense 4,705 - - 4,704
et fmancing revenues 1,260 - - % 260
Waluniary prolection contragl revemuss
anill irsuranee camed premnims - 1,120 - 1izn
Ievestmen! and other meome, nel 515 188 - ®i1
[t fimancing and other revenues 3,775 LATE - 5253
Espeanes
Provasion for credit losses LE - - Ll
Caperating and sdminisirtive (R 454 - 1920
Volumary prolection contract expenses and insurance losses - 392 - 22
Total expenses 2,305 [T & 1,151
Icome before incoms baxes. 1470 432 - 1,02
Frowveswon for income axes Akl S - 3
Mel income 5 LI26 § EET - - & 1 4400
Tokal assets £ 1L 5 TAeh £ (TH) & 149381
Year eoded March 31, 2023
Voluntary
Finamee predecten Inlcrconpany
operabions operutions chiminations Toaal
Tokl fmancing revemies 5 129 3 -5 - & 1,293
Lxeprecistion on operating leases 5,121 - - 5,122
Imleres! expense 3054 - - 3,054
Ml finuncing revenues LT - - N7
Volunlary prolection copfrocl revemes
and insurance esmed premnims . 1,053 - 1,053
Ievestment and other income (loss ), met 114 L2174 = 297
Mt financing and othes revenucs 3431 B3 - 4,267
Expemscs:
Proviseon for credit losses Ti3 . - N3
H;Pu.-mlinp and sdmmistmtive 1,31%] 445 1,776
Valumtnry prolection contrmct expenses and msurance lesses a AT - 470
lotal expenses S| s - 2,959
Tecome (Boss) beline income tuxes 1,387 (T} - 1,308
Prowesion (benelit) for income taxes A4 {17 = 129
Bl inwamie (boss} £ Lokl % {61}y $ - & 9
Tokal nsseis § 13 5 6,638 € (1367 § 137,595

g
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MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions )

Mate 14— mend Inform. antin

Volwntary protection aperaiiong

The voluntary protection operations segment offers volunizry protection products on Toyou, Lexus and other
domestic and impon vehicles that are primanly sobd by dealers along with ihe sale of a vehicle,

Feluntaery provection comieact revidmies

We reegive the contraciieally determined dealer cost at the inception ef the contract, Revenue is then delomed aund
recogdaed over the 1erm of the contract according 1o cornings factors cstablighed by momagcment (hat are based
upon historical loss experience. Coniracis sold range in ierm from 3 te 120 mioaihs and are typically cancellable ni
any thme. The effect of subsequent cancellations 45 recorded a8 an off3¢1 o wneamed voluntiry proleciion conirst
revenues i Cther Habilitics on our Consolidated Balance Shects.

For the years ended Maorch 31, 2025 and 2024, respectively, approximately B6 percent and 84 pereent of voluntary
PEGIECEWn CONIFACT revenucs in the volunmary proteclion opertions seament were acconted for wunder the puidsnes
fior reveme from contrcts with customers.

The voluntary profection operations scgmen defers contractually determined incentives paid 1o dealers as contract
costs for seiling voluntary protection products. These cosis are recorded in Other assets on our Consolidaied Balanee
Sheets and are amortized 10 Operating and adiministrative expenses i e Consolidated Staements of Incomse using
i methododogy consistent with the recognition of revenue. The amownt of capitalized dealer incentives and the
related ﬂmmim:zimn wits ol signi o o our consolidoted Gnoncial stmements as of and for e years ended March
X1, 2025 and 2024,

Wi had 531 billion and 52 % billion o umearned voluniary profection comiract revenyes from contracis with
customers included in Ciler liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2024 and March 31,
2023, respectively. We recognized 5945 millon of the umeamied amounts in voluntary prolection comiras revenues
in aur Consolidated Statements of Income during fiscal 2025, compared 1o 58569 milhon duning fiscal 7024, As of
Murch 31, 2025, we bind unearmed valunary protection contrct revernses of 33,4 billion icluded i Other liabdlities
on our Consolidated Balance Sheet, and with respect 1o this balance, we expest 10 recogniae revenue of
approximately S9F7 million in fiscal 2026 and 524 billion thereafier.

:if.“ﬂ'ﬂ!li'l" I"HFTH“TJ FIH"!.IH:HNH'

Revemees from premivms written are deferred and recognized over the term of the contract according 1o camings
factors cstablished by management that are based upon histoeical loss experience.

Feumtary protection contract expenses and fnsuranci fosses

Voluntary prodectiom coniract expenses and insurance losses inchude amomits paid and accrued for loss events thi
are kiown and lave been recorded a5 claims, estimates of bosses inciarmed but ol reported based on aciuasial
estmates and hisiorical loss development patierns, and loss adjustment expenses thal are expecied 1o be incumed in
conmection with settling and paying these clams.

Accruals for unpaid bosses, bsses incurred but not reponied, and boss adjnsument expenscs ane included in Other
Trabaliics on our Consolidsed Balance Sheets. These accruals arising from contrscts eniered o by TMIS ane e
significant a5 of March 31, 2025 and 2024. Estimated [iabilitics are reviewed regulary, and we recogniiee any
adjustments in the peniods in which they are detenmined. 1T anticipated losses. loss adjusiment expenses, and
wirnntized acquisitica wnd nountenmce costs exceed e reconded unearmed premdum, o premium deficiency s
recognized by first charging any unamoriized acquisiion cosis (o expense and then by recerding o labiligy for any
excess deficiency,

Nizk Trevsfer

Cr voluntary profection operations trmsfer cennin risks to profect us against the impact of unpredictable high
sevierity losses. The amouniis recoverable from reinsurers and sher companies that wssume Babilities relaling 1o our
Violuntary predection opertions are determined in g manner consistent with the relmed reinsurumce or risk transfer
conract. Amgunts recoverable from reinsurers and other conmpanies on unpaid loses are recorded as receivables bul
wre ot collectible until the losses are paid. Revenwes relued o risks tmnsfermed are recognired on the same basis as
the related revenues from the underiving contracts, Covered losscs are recorded as a reduction o Velunary
profectiom contract expenscs and insurance losscs.

s
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Troubled debt restructuring, TDR
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117 118 119 120 121
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
27,214,594 | 31,379,507 | 37,154,298 | 45,095,325 | 48,036,704
2,932,354 3,990,532 3,668,733 6,965,085 6,414,590
2,245,261 2,850,110 2,451,318 4,944,933 4,765,086
3,217,806 3,954,350 3,251,090 6,999,828 4,011,822
23,404,547 | 26,245,969 | 28,338,706 | 34,220,991 | 35,924,826
62,267,140 | 67,688,771 | 74,303,180 | 90,114,296 | 93,601,350
() 1,674.18 1,904.88 2,089.08 2,539.75 2,753.09
() 160.65 205.23 179.47 365.94 359.56
() 158.93 205.23 179.47 365.94 359.56
() 37.6 38.8 38.1 38.0 38.4
() 10.2 11.5 9.0 15.8 13.6
() 10.7 10.8 10.5 10.4 7.3
2,727,162 3,722,615 2,955,076 4,206,373 3,696,934
4,684,175 577,496 1,598,890 4,998,751 4,189,736
2,739,174 2,466,516 56,180 2,497,558 197,236
5,100,857 6,113,655 7,516,966 9,412,060 8,982,404
) 366,283 372,817 375,235 380,793 383,853
[80,009]| [87,120]| [94,974]| [96,482]| [95,530]
2021 10 117
2021 2021
2023 31 2024 31 2025 31
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117 118 119 120 121
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
11,761,405 12,607,858 14,076,956 17,575,593 18,277,671
1,886,691 2,171,530 3,520,848 5,578,695 4,538,037
1,638,057 1,693,947 2,936,379 4,399,855 3,845,213
635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402 635,402
3,262,997 16,314,987 16,314,987 16,314,987 15,794,987
47,100
13,894,021 14,607,272 16,493,041 20,440,081 21,504,804
21,198,281 20,991,040 23,230,320 28,161,955 29,046,699
() 959.55 1,060.16 1,215.84 1,516.98 1,648.01
240 148 60 75 90
) ( 105) ( 120) ( 25) ¢ 30) ( 40)
264
) (132.0) () ) ) ¢ )
() 116.56 121.98 214 .99 325.61 290.15
() 115.31 121.97 214 .99 325.61 290.15
() 65.5 69.6 71.0 72.6 74.0
() 12.4 11.9 18.9 23.8 18.3
() 14.8 18.2 8.7 11.6 9.0
() 41.2 42.6 27.9 23.0 31.0
() 71,373 70,710 70,056 70,224 71,515
1 [ 9.565] [ 9.917] [ 11,405]| [ 13,182]| [ 14,956]|
() 136.2 178.6 156.9 309.7 226.2
() (142.1) (145.0) (153.4) (216.8) (213.4)
TOPIX
2,475
() 8,712 (1237 2,283 3,891 3,824
1,622
() 6,163 (8.110) 1,764 1,784 2,183
29 2020 31 118

118

227/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd
2021 10 117
118 120 28
148
117 118 119 120 121
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
240 260 300 375 450
) ( 105) ( 120) ( 125) ( 150) ( 200)
2021 2021
2023 2024 2025
2022 2022
118
27 2022 10 28 20
121 121

228/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TFS

229/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OoOoOoOoOodno
€))
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
¢ | 2174001 2,350,615 | 2,836,907 | 3,503,463 | 4,386,219
«C ) 474,498 646,813 430,675 579,778 690,985
«C ) 350,229 478,661 288,778 417,871 490,962
«C ) 497,070 801,434 531,283 928,876 421,037
( | 3,484,98| 4,204,851 | 4,533,337 | 5,330,30| 5,607,125
( | 27,482,433 | 30,751,007 | 34,457,131 | 42,779,266 | 45,687,195
() | 2,184,614.29 | 2,689,761.92 | 2,824,298.62 | 3,321,484.57 | 3,495,127.97
() 223,004.92 | 304,782.79 | 183,876.74 | 266,075.45 | 312,615.23
® - - - - -
() 12.5 13.7 12.9 12.2 12.0
() 11.0 12.5 6.7 8.7 9.2
® - - — — -
« - - - - -
« - - - - -
« - - - - -
« - - — — -
12,226 12,986 13,771 14,533 15,188
y ) (1,386) (1,374) (1,489) (1,570) (1,618)
)
29 2000 @ 31 2022
2022
27 2022 10 28 2022
2022 20
28 2022 10 28 65 @

230/314



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

@

2021 3 2022 3 2023 3 2024 3 2025 3
67,148 116,713 483,893 256,927 131,246
47,481 91,361 460,159 227,542 100,416
41,009 82,651 445,939 221,104 99,830
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525

1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
665,834 747,288 880,949 981,274 939,050
674,448 757,115 895,661 991,016 951,920

423,963.15 475,828.45 560,935.91 624,816.46 597,930.97
. 7,640.00 272,842.00 86,128.00 50,415.00

(—) | (191,020.00) ) )

26,112.55 52,627.34 283,947.19 140,786.31 63,566.31
98.7 98.7 98.4 99.0 98.6

6.4 11.7 54.8 23.7 10.4

— 14.5 96.1 61.2 79.3

230 120 127 134 129

(23) (20) an (C) (25

(

)

231/314

oOoOooodn



2000

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

( ) 100

1982

1986
1987
1988

1990
1993
2000

2004
2005
2018
2019

(UK)

232/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

ooooooo
89
) (
(U]
42
@ ( )
(B R AR
k3 ¥ B TR
(100% T 24k) |
FE& T bt — A RS
[ i i 51

FAFTrA AR
(£

Fa& f£—F— ¥ iR
[ - EEEET (- ]
FAF FrA4teR A=A FFITHR
FaE& Tt e — R (K (B
FRE V=i df 84T Fi)
Fas sAnd He—F 2 FiE
E5T

il — A T

i — A P

Rl

233/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

)
(
635,401 100
)
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Henderson, ( ) 700 100
Nevada, U.S.A. (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
( 100
Sao Paulo, Brazil ) (100)
272,179
_ . . ( 100
Mexico City, Mexico ) (100)
491,368
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
( )
Cologne, Germany 30.000 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 253,950
( ) 100
Roma, Italy 122,863 (100)
( 100
Warsaw, Poland (100)
9,000
Sydney, ( )
New Sou?h Wales, 120,000 100
Australia
Sydney,
New South Wales, ( ) 2 (188)
Australia
(
Bangkok, Thailand ) 90
18,100
4,100,000 100
o (
Makati, Philippines ) 60
8,700,000
Selangor Darul (
Ehsan, ) 70
Malaysia 187,000
71
)

234/314



(

)

10

(

)

235/314

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd
@
2025 31
)
2,600
4,111
995
584
6,769
129
15,188 (1,618)
) (
) ( )
)
« )
@
2025 31
) ) ) (I
129(25) 41.1 6.0 9,779
) ( )
( ) )
(©))
(O]
15.6%
150% 27 64

236/314



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

) WC D
)
(D)
7.4 7731 ( 2 50.3 52.2 45.3
— 75.0| ( D — — —
15.4 53.8| ( 3) 76.7 77.3 —
) 27 64
76
25 71
76
25 71

237/314




@
@
®
*
®
©)
)
®

MaaS

238/314

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

@

EMY=E3L FHCEEIORE. M - EmIng
EEUF T, RO i< AOER BRTEDRITS
SSLERNC

L iies

YATFE)T ik iR

s

|
A7 FY 7 R GRID

l

A7 )T L S

HiRSET—leht | HAESOHERY S

239/314



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000000000000(E05904)
Oooooooa

&)

TFS
t 7 —FCEO |
[ v Hb—l?"GRO | o TH=TFAR YRS

2397 4~ (ERC)

HY—iax
| 1 —a9.-CEO |
z Frvfiatn .
J—x "y |
[ I—ar ) A7 i | bl
BT AR AT 2T, 3=l = T7
B, TS T Y7490, P, H % VoW, LT IAT
ARG i N TEYS
3 1 X2 U £ DA %)
FriE ek ¥F

240/314



®

Experience
Active Learning
Training

241/314

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

100%



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

@

40

242/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

243/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

@

®

*

244/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

€Y)

@

o

&)

Create value by enabling freedom of movement

30% 423

245/314



1,212

367

156

45

1,557

1,

5,893

310

1,312

998 1,256

3,096
10

5,261
3,792 470

)
3,202

1,565

735
339

45 6,871

37 7,596

40 800
18 960

6,071

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
3,862 8,827
6,302 1,095 6,909 1,112
4,909 730
1,256
1,004 1,271 998
236
3,514
1,139 473
567 204
3,370
9,079
7,765 9,268
6,311
418 21 9,840
2,767

246/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

( ) )
3,148,186 37.6
22,518,117 1.9
2,877,008 2.1
1,398,526 7.8
9,870,691 10.1
39,812,531 6.2

( ) )
309,672 8.3
2,526,191 16.2
320,272 55.2
156,531 56.8
1,073,551 45.8
4,386,219 25.2

247/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

ooooOoog
( )
3,653,184
49,344
@
2025 31
( ) )
6,157,791 100.0
6,157,791 100.0
)
@
D
2)
2025 31
( )
( ) ()
1,910
723 22,780 466 | 23,971 (306

)
)

248/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
3)
2025 31
( )
( ) )
(Plano 23,757 | 25,246 | 2,233 51,237 21251)”
Texas, U.S.A.)

)
)

249/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

@
)
4,680,000
4,680,000
)
1,570,500
1,570,500 — —
(@)
(©)
“4)
) ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2004 15 () 70,000 | 1,570,500 3,500 78,525 3,500 78,525
1,500,500 70,000 70,000

100,000
50,000

250/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OOooOoOoOoo
)
(2025 31 )
()
) — ! — — — ! —
() —11,570,500 — — — 11,570,500 —
( ) —_ 100.00 —_ —_ — 100.00 —_
)
(2025 31 )
(
) ) O
1,570,500 100.00
— 1,570,500 100.00
@
(2025 31 )
() ()
( — — I
( _ J— _
( — - —
( 1,570,500 1,570,500 —_
1,570,500 — —
— 1,570,500 —

251/314



(

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

@
@
®
4
25 2025 50,415
)
) )
2025 26 79,176 50,415

252/314

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

€))

404

146 —

430

13

253/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

199
202

454

254/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

&)

10 — —

(D)

1986
2018

1961 12 28 2021 ()

2021

1984
2013

2018
1962 (@)

2018

2019

1990
2013

2016

2016

2018
1961 2018 N
2018

2021 10

2024

2025

1999
2017
1964 19 ()

2020

255/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

(D)

1985
2017

2018

1961 23 2019 )

2019

2019

1986

2016

2020

1963 10 19 )
2022

2022

2023

2025

1972

2001

2007
2010
2015
2018

1948 10 23 )
2018

2018
2018
2022

2023
Executive Fellow

256/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

(D)

1986

2022
1964 10 )

2024 11

1991
2018

2019

201
1968 019 )
2021
2025

2025

1999

2022
1975 11 )
2025

2026
2028

257/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

®

143

PwC Japan

2001
2007 PwC Japan
2006 PwC Japan

258/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

PwC Japan

PwC Japan

259/314



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

) ( ) ( ) )
88 - 100 —

124 30 131 29
213 30 231 29

) ( ) ( ) )
2,512 710 2,684 724
2,512 710 2,684 724

oOoOooodn

*

®

260/314



@

@

®

261/314

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

( 51 28

( 38 59 )



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OoOoOoOoOodno
(€))
( )
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
1,327,207 1,420,146
, 29,094,601 , 30,593,345
2,828,190 3,061,394
1,352,456 1,680,864
1,505,000 1,510,127
478,877 506,211
35,628,579 37,759,666
C ) , 5,548,517 , 6,157,791
41,326 52,498
5,589,843 6,210,290
87,299 85,111
, 1,075,711 , 1,213,873
397,518 417,620
1,473,230 1,631,494
7,150,373 7,926,896
313 632
42,779,266 45,687,195

262/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd
( )
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
1,049,586 1,332,895
) 4,480,572 ) 4,692,578
4,961,284 4,775,838
4,100,127 3,912,302
36,638 42,816
2,878,495 3,339,632
17,506,704 18,096,063
11,092,620 11,896,409
, 7,840,448 , 9,097,599
670,540 614,397
7,703 552
19,323 18,477
311,546 356,571
19,942,181 21,984,007
37,448,886 40,080,070
78,525 78,525
159,900 157,779
3,947,716 4,303,414
4,186,141 4,539,719
18,568 20,263
849 230
1,047,969 969,873
1,030,249 949,379
113,988 118,026
5,330,380 5,607,125
42,779,266 45,687,195

263/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

( )
( 2023 ( 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
3,503,463 4,386,219
2,185,849 2,889,187
1,317,613 1,497,031
796,895 866,740
520,717 630,290
688 —
15,863 11,974
40,693 47,624
3,451 4,904
60,696 64,504
1,041 1,384
— 1,606
594 818
1,636 3,809
579,778 690,985
8,675 —
1,196 —
9,871 —
569,907 690,985
201,327 233,193
59,911 44,505
141,415 188,688
428,491 502,297
10,619 11,334
417,871 490,962

264/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd
( )
( 2023 (2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
428,491 502,297
5,797 1,694
323 793
489,459 82,323
5,451 3,552
500,385 81,259
928,876 421,037
909,331 410,092
19,544 10,945

265/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
2023 2024 31 )

( )

78,525 159,900 3,658,346 3,896,771

128,501 128,501

417,871 417,871

— — 289,370 289,370

78,525 159,900 3,947,716 4,186,141
24,366 655 562,499 538,789 97,776 4,533,337
128,501
417,871
5,797 193 485,469 491,460 16,212 507,672
5,797 193 485,469 491,460 16,212 797,043
18,568 849 1,047,969 1,030,249 113,988 5,330,380

266/314




EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
2024 2025 31
( )
78,525 159,900 3,947,716 4,186,141
135,264 135,264
490,962 490,962
2,121 2,121
2,121 355,698 353,577
78,525 157,779 4,303,414 4,539,719
18,568 849 1,047,969 1,030,249 113,988 5,330,380
135,264
490,962
2,121
1,694 1,079 78,095 80,870 4,037 76,832
1,694 1,079 78,095 80,870 4,037 276,744
20,263 230 969,873 949,379 118,026 5,607,125

267/314




~

(

(

(

(
89
)
)
G 31 )
12 31
)
(
)
)

268/314

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn



(

(

(

(

(

)

)

)

)

)

269/314

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

)
( )
500,650 472,784
( )
68,283 72,441

270/314



2022

@

@
2028

®

28

)
20
2022 10 28
2022
34 2024

33

271/314

13

27

2022

2024

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

2022 10 28

13

oOoOooodn

2022

65 @



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
1,450,071 1,321,546
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
103,530 113,201
34,615 40,922
2,639 3,130
2,639 3,130

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
3,776,288 2,712,516
79,750 74,481
17,947 18,094
3,873,986 2,805,092

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
5,039,903 4,439,995

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
6,534,466 7,464,994
1,558,193 1,600,271
72,414 81,980
158,805 225,445

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
— 16,208
2,767,981 3,211,596
3,672,963 4,154,388
10,978 10,557
54,859 75,474

272/314



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
6,353,884 7,280,010

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
6,145,467 6,971,766
1,558,193 1,600,271

273/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

( )
( 2023 ( 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
178,150 198,370
233,672 265,842
( 2023 ( 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
( )78,324 ( )7,633
( 2023 ( 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
9,867 3,765
122 6,996
9,745 3,231
3,947 1,536
5,797 1,694
88 1,315
377 154
465 1,160
142 366
323 793
489,459 82,323
5,451 3,552
500,385 81,259

274/314



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OOooOoOoOoo
( )
(2023 2024 31
() 1,570,500 _ _ 1,570,500
@
2023 6 28 128,501 81,822 | 2023 3 31 2023 6 29
)
2024 6 27 135,264 86,128 | 2024 3 31 | 2024 6 28
(2024 2025 31
() 1,570,500 _ _ 1,570,500
@
2024 6 27 135,264 86,128 | 2024 3 31 2024 6 28
)
2025 6 26 79,176 50,415 | 2025 3 31 2025 6 27

275/314




€Y)

@

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
911,462 977,928
622,932 623,812
166,373 185,311
1,368,021 1,416,429
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
562,973 634,623
448,460 510,767
349,727 397,448
165,982 198,146
69,294 68,557
7,757 13,986
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
393,781 407,451
224,965 239,882
156,404 172,354
97,535 111,100
28,935 32,687
9,840 14,452
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
908,141 1,105,489
984,356 1,206,199
1,892,498 2,311,689

276/314



@

@

®

(100BPV)

(

)

(ALM)

277/314

ALM

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

OooooOodd
100BPV 100 ')
( )}
2024 31 2025 31
(100BPV) (  )9,152 (  )137,535
)
ALM
O]
)

278/314



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

(2024 31 )
)
@ 29,094,601
) 426,221
28,668,380 28,784,308 115,928
@ ( 2,205,258
) 46,562
2,158,695 2,245,784 87,088
3 2,349,923 2,389,518 39,594
33,176,999 33,419,611 242,611
() 16,053,904 15,754,990 298,914
@ ) 12,321,020 12,215,397 105,622
28,374,925 27,970,388 404,536
)
17,019 20,819 37,838
119 1,635 1,516
17,138 19,183 36,322
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
« D (€))

78,244

279/314

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

(2025 31 )
)
@ 30,593,345
) 444,568
30,148,777 30,558,249 409,471
@ ( 2,437,581
) 56,082
2,381,499 2,518,433 136,933
® 2,809,875 2,820,683 10,807
35,340,152 35,897,365 557,213
(€H) 16,672,247 16,586,336 85,910
) ) 13,790,178 13,782,682 7,495
30,462,425 30,369,019 93,406
)
16,526 24,151 40,678
95 7,470 7,565
16,622 31,621 48,243
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D
« D )
« D (©))

84,862
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(2024 31 )
(¢ )
1,327,207 — —
10,136,513 16,850,628 1,701,344
812,624 1,354,281 15,275
149,507 190,219 340,366
710,869 — 485
860,377 190,219 340,851
13,136,722 18,395,129 2,057,471
(2025 31 )
( )
1,420,146 — —
10,475,616 18,051,619 1,659,976
868,860 1,519,800 24,651
218,790 360,604 319,850
657,888 — 502
876,678 360,604 320,352
13,641,302 19,932,023 2,004,980
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(2024 31 )
)
1,049,586 — _
4,100,127 — —
4,963,072 9,369,512 1,757,884
4,480,572 7,588,542 251,905
14,593,358 16,958,055 2,009,789
(2025 31 )
)
1,332,895 — —
3,912,302 — _
4,777,407 10,304,278 1,625,835
4,692,578 8,822,018 275,580
14,715,184 19,126,296 1,901,416
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@
(2024 31 )
93,193 — — 93,193
376,148 238,240 16,571 630,959
1,493,136 172,228 — 1,665,364
— 145,615 — 145,615
— 256,231 — 256,231
1,962,478 812,315 16,571 2,791,365
— 291,209 — 291,209
— 89,937 — 89,937
— 381,147 — 381,147
(2025 31 )
49,881 — — 49,881
603,856 230,557 24,819 859,233
1,747,177 164,391 — 1,911,568
— 171,930 — 171,930
— 105,423 — 105,423
2,400,915 672,302 24,819 3,098,037
— 210,951 — 210,951
— 90,458 — 90,458
— 301,410 — 301,410
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(2024 31 )
— — 28,784,308 28,784,308
— — 2,245,784 2,245,784
— 611 — 611
— 611 31,030,092 31,030,704
— 15,754,990 — 15,754,990
— 5,920,674 6,294,723 12,215,397
— 2,127 — 2,127
— 21,677,793 6,294,723 27,972,516
(2025 31 )
— — 30,558,249 30,558,249
— — 2,518,433 2,518,433
— 187 — 187
— 187 33,076,682 33,076,870
— 16,586,336 — 16,586,336
— 6,998,482 6,784,200 13,782,682
— 7,753 — 7,753
— 23,592,572 6,784,200 30,376,772
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(2024 31 )
( )
19,484 8,314 11,170
143,443 142,956 487
170,913 129,280 41,632
333,841 280,550 53,290
487,516 532,891 45,375
1,494,451 1,536,125 41,674
1,981,967 2,069,017 87,049
2,315,809 2,349,567 33,758

(2025 31 )
( )
1,570 330 1,240
424,408 423,030 1,378
180,356 131,416 48,940
606,336 554,777 51,558
316 366 49
434,824 472,875 38,051
1,731,211 1,758,929 27,717
2,166,352 2,232,170 65,818
2,772,688 2,786,948 14,259
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(2024 31 )
@
)
5,506 — 40 40
597,402 4,008 3,967 3,967
764,460 657,680 64,433 64,433
705,077 424,693 19,357 19,357
419,864 356,559 1,667 1,667
405,070 163,959 46,173 46,173
392,106 328,195 48,221 48,221
253,951 202,885 7,199 7,199
2,527,446 1,859,412 37,449 37,449
6,070,885 3,997,393 145,594 145,594
@
)
7,899,193 6,325,296 54,739 54,739
17,048,762 11,503,630 221,044 221,044
214,113 105,168 108 108
25,162,070 17,934,095 166,413 166,413
@
)
28,000 20,000 141
46,000 46,000 22
422,500 401,500 1,516
496,500 467,500 1,635
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@
)
13,770 — 291 291
623,191 37,638 11,394 11,394
811,445 811,445 32,084 32,084
623,326 372,780 22,709 22,709
416,858 416,858 20,389 20,389
381,165 301,250 50,601 50,601
283,430 239,151 3,319 3,319
274,141 274,141 11,571 11,571
251,072 178,750 9,784 9,784
2,616,061 1,885,882 28,573 28,573
6,294,464 4,517,898 39,020 39,020
@
)
7,774,247 6,141,169 7,083 7,083
17,254,289 11,559,984 7,857 7,857
332,804 284,180 72 72
25,361,341 17,985,334 14,869 14,869
@
)
40,000 40,000 670
145,000 133,000 765
366,500 340,500 7,638
10,000 10,000 72
561,500 523,500 7,470
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@
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
697,786 680,584
612,067 600,728
85,719 79,856
@
28.1 (2023 2024 31 )
27.6 (2024 2025 31 )
(©)
(€))
@
( 2023 ( 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
35,578 40,236
1,915 2,216
839 895
1,568 1,820
815 3,084
4,288 430
40,236 38,872
@
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22,850 22,133

20,913 20,962

1,936 1,171

17,386 16,739

19,323 17,910

19,323 18,477

— 567

19,323 17,910
®

( 2023 ( 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )

1,915 2,216

554 1,122

264 321

2,733 1,414
®)
®)

(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
0.1 5.0 1.4 5.9
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(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
109,763 109,714
19,012 18,315
143,018 153,058
271,794 281,089
14,989 14,563
256,804 266,525
765,605 713,515
57,310 60,005
822,915 773,521
566,110 506,995
)
( ) ( )
o 104,429 o 107,402
— 670,540 — 614,397
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
30.6 30.6
6.9 6.7
1.1 3.4
24.8 27.3
42 2021 12
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)
( )
( 2023 2024 31 )
( )
) )
286,039 | 2,174,700 | 206,370 99,820 736,532 | 3,503,463 — | 3,503,463
10,974 22,025 16 4,934 125,925 163,877 | 163,877 —
297,013 | 2,196,725 | 206,387 104,755 862,457 | 3,667,340 | 163,877 | 3,503,463
37,811 332,160 31,742 15,945 121,854 539,514 18,796 520,717
2,288,577 |22,099,068 (2,817,876 | 1,297,298 | 8,968,489 (37,471,309 — 137,471,309
36,233 681,100 | 100,628 40,714 414,793 | 1,273,470 | 129,983 | 1,143,486
24,286 625,773 43,331 17,731 95,643 806,766 38 806,805
11,580 137,638 9,343 4,399 70,710 233,672 — 233,672
)
(€Y 18,796
) 129,983
35,937 994,882
166,234 83,778 711,725
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(2024 2025 31 )
( )
) )
309,672 | 2,526,191 | 320,272 | 156,531 | 1,073,551 | 4,386,219 — | 4,386,219
9,294 24,188 1,554 5,971 | 164,255 | 205,263 | 205,263 —
318,966 | 2,550,379 | 321,826 | 162,503 | 1,237,806 | 4,591,482 | 205,263 | 4,386,219
36,782 | 379,242 | 47,349 20,465 | 155,783 | 639,623 9,332 | 630,290
3,148,186 (22,518,117 (2,877,008 | 1,398,526 | 9,870,691 (39,812,531 — 39,812,531
48,937 | 957,947 | 134,295 56,806 | 530,918 | 1,728,905 | 168,906 | 1,559,998
30,759 | 623,613 | 53,185 25,722 | 128,079 | 861,360 128 | 861,489
12,725 | 149,670 | 12,993 3,011 87,440 | 265,842 — | 265,842
)
@ 9,332
0} 168,906
52,760 1,248,353
211,299 105,688 863,697
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2023 2024 31 )
90
€Y)
( )
286,039 2,067,018 1,150,405 3,503,463
()
@
( )
148,741 4,256,327 1,184,774 5,589,843
10
2024 2025 31 )
90
1€))
( )
309,672 2,395,657 1,680,889 4,386,219
()
@
( )
195,674 4,587,567 1,427,048 6,210,290
10
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2023 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
3,321,484 57 3,495,127 97
266,075 45 312,615 23
)
2023 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
417,871 490,962
( J— J—
417,871 490,962
() 1,570,500 1,570,500
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
) 5,330,380 5,607,125
113,988 118,026
5,216,391 5,489,098
) 1,570,500 1,570,500
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) ) (@)
2017 575,000 696,000 | 0.00 2024
) (121,000)
2025 1.18 2032
2008 15,478,904 15,976,247 [ 0.00 [( ) | 2024
() (4,654,838)
() 2025 [64,262 [66,135 96.96 2048
) 8,367 8,284
1,321 1,396
2,625 2,850
5,000 5,000
73,945 88,338
2,000 1,750
9,985 13,874
750 2,750
16,500 20,000
2,400 2,199
2,000 2,000
1,000 1,000
16,985 18,240
150 950
36,000 48,900
5,000 —
5,500 9,000
10,000 15,000
150 —
2,085 3,168
1,035 1,630
1 1
— — 16,053,904 %j:g;g:ggg) — | = —
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)

21

4,777,407 4,238,211 2,819,397 1,322,889 1,923,779
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( ) ( ) )
1,049,586 1,332,895 2.57 —
4,480,572 4,692,578 4.18 —
2,767,981 3,211,596 4.06 —
) 7,840,448 9,097,599 3.99 | 2026 2038
( 3,585,903 4,068,414 4.54 | 2026 2030
4,100,127 3,912,302 3.82 —
)
( )
3,758,294 2,876,268 1,491,161 696,293
2,074,883 1,315,272 456,504 221,753
100
@
( 2,044,867 4,386,219
( ( 332,857 690,985
( ( 240,111 490,962
( ) 152,888.47 312,615.23
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( )
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )

7,171 12,613

11,850 13,027

303,390 196,760

3,848 1,987

326,260 224,388

187 172

13 1,015

27,083 9,681

314,225 338,683

208,734 260,178

110,000 110,000

4,511 7,800

664,554 726,344

664,756 727,532

991,016 951,920
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( )
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )

6,588 7,240
2,356 4,802
8,944 12,042
797 827
9,742 12,869
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
78,525 78,525
816,929 781,495
816,929 781,495
973,979 938,545
7,295 504
7,295 504
981,274 939,050
991,016 951,920
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(
( 2023 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
233,943 103,614
22,984 27,348
— 283
256,927 131,246
12,359 14,490
12,359 14,490
244,567 116,755
19,053 16,926
225,514 99,829
402 1,056
331 365
406 351
856 —
42 169
2,038 1,943
— 1,351
10 3
10 1,355
227,542 100,416
194 7,098
194 7,098
— 1,306
1,196 —
1,196 1,306
226,540 106,208
6,269 6,713
833 335
5,435 6,377
221,104 99,830
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( 2023 2024 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 724,325 881,375 425 880,949
128,501 128,501 128,501
221,104 221,104 221,104
) 7,720 7,720
— — 92,603 92,603 7,720 100,324
78,525 78,525 816,929 973,979 7,295 981,274
( 2024 2025 31 )
( )
78,525 78,525 816,929 973,979 7,295 981,274
135,264 135,264 135,264
99,830 99,830 99,830
) 6,790 6,790
— — 35,433 35,433 6,790 42,223
78,525 78,525 781,495 938,545 504 939,050
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2023 (2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
13,553 11,130
1,792 1,859
345 335
155 128
38 128
2023 ( 2024
2024 31 ) 2025 31 )
8,868 6,966
402 1,050
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( )
(2024 31 )
(
@ - — —
[©) 1,580 73,709 72,128
1,580 73,709 72,128
)
)
2024 31
278,499
34,144
312,644
(2025 31 )
(
o) — B —
D) 1,580 47,994 46,413
1,580 47,994 46,413
)
)
2025 31
302,958
34,144
337,102
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( )
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )
5,176 5,581
4,679 4,816
1,712 1,534
164 580
750 507
231 237
261 232
10 140
105 102
42 44
13,135 13,777
5,599 5,905
7,535 7,872
45 47
3,216 222
3,262 269
( ) 4,273 7,602
(2024 31 ) (2025 31 )

30.6 30.6

29.9 28.0

1.5 3.3

0.2 0.3

0.0 0.2

2.4 6.0

42 2021 12
13 2025 31 2026
2026
30.60
31.47
( )
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()

)
231,900 8,116
3,305,300 1,057
266,629 507
3,803,829 9,681
( ) ( ) )
)
— 337 165 23 172
— 1,171 156 105 1,015

@
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PCAOB
)
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2025 31 86,872
1,544
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)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation:

Opinion on the Financial Satements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
shareholder’s equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2025, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financia statements’). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2025 and 2024, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2025 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basisfor Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express
an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financia statements based on our audits. We are apublic accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent
with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statementsin accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of itsinternal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relates to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (i) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financia statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate
opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosuresto which it relates.
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Retail Loan Portfolio Allowance for Credit Losses

As described in Notes 3 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company had retail loans of $86,872 million, for
which an allowance for credit losses of $1,544 million was recorded as of March 31, 2025. The allowance for credit losses
represents management’ s estimate of expected credit losses over the expected lifetime of theloans. Theloan lifetimeis
regarded by management as the reasonable and supportable period. Management uses statistical models to estimate lifetime
expected credit losses of the retail 1oan portfolio by applying probability of default and loss given default to the exposure at
default on aloan level basis. Probability of default models are developed from internal risk scoring models which consider
variables such as delinquency status, historical default frequency and other credit quality indicators such as loan-to-value ratio,
book payment-to-income ratio, FICO score at origination, collateral type, and contract term. Loss given default models
forecast the extent of losses given that a default has occurred and consider variables such as collateral, trends in recoveries,
historical loss severity and other contract structure variables. Exposure at default represents the expected outstanding principal
balance, including the effects of expected prepayment when applicable. The lifetime expected credit losses incorporate the
probability weighted forward looking macroeconomic forecasts for baseline, favorable, and adverse scenarios. If management
does not believe the models adequately reflect lifetime expected credit losses, a qualitative adjustment is made to reflect
management judgment regarding observable changes in recent or expected economic trends and conditions, portfolio
composition, and other relevant factors.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the retail loan portfolio allowance for
credit lossesis acritical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management in determining the estimate of the retail
loan portfolio alowance for credit losses, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity and effort in
performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence relating to probability of default and loss given default assumptions and
the qualitative adjustment used in estimating the allowance for credit losses, and (ii) the audit effort involved the use of
professionals with specialized skill and knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures also included, among others, testing management’ s process
for estimating the retail loan portfolio allowance for credit losses by (i) evaluating the appropriateness of the models used to
estimate the retail 1oan portfolio allowance for credit losses, (i) testing certain data used in the estimate, and (iii) evaluating the
reasonableness of probability of default and loss given default assumptions and the qualitative adjustment, which also involved
the use of professionals with specialized skill and knowledge to perform these procedures to test management’s process.

/4 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
June 3, 2025

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1983.
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